OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 2ND JULY 2020, 6.30 PM
THE LANCASTRIAN, TOWN HALL, CHORLEY
AGENDA
APOLOGIES
MINUTES
(Pages 5 - 10)

1

MINUTES OF MEETING THURSDAY, 23 JANUARY 2020 OF
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

2

MINUTES OF MEETING THURSDAY, 27 FEBRUARY 2020 OF
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

(Pages 11 - 14)

3

MINUTES OF MEETING THURSDAY, 30 JANUARY 2020 OF
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PERFORMANCE PANEL

(Pages 15 - 18)

4

MINUTES OF MEETING THURSDAY, 5 MARCH 2020 OF OVERVIEW
AND SCRUTINY PERFORMANCE PANEL

(Pages 19 - 22)

5

DECLARATIONS OF ANY INTERESTS
Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any pecuniary interest
in respect of matters contained in this agenda.
If you have a pecuniary interest you must withdraw from the meeting. Normally
you should leave the room before the business starts to be discussed. You do,
however, have the same right to speak as a member of the public and may
remain in the room to enable you to exercise that right and then leave
immediately. In either case you must not seek to improperly influence a
decision on the matter.

6

PUBLIC QUESTIONS
Members of the public who have requested the opportunity to ask a
question(s) on an item on the agenda will be asked to put their question(s) to
the Committee. Each member of the public will be allowed to ask one
supplementary question within his/her allocated 3 minutes.

SCRUTINY OF THE EXECUTIVE CABINET
7

EXECUTIVE CABINET MINUTES
To consider the Executive Cabinet minutes of the meeting held on 16 January,
13 February and 18 June (enclosed).

Meeting contact Nina Neisser on 01257 515140 or email nina.neisser@chorley.gov.uk

A

MINUTES OF MEETING THURSDAY, 16 JANUARY 2020 OF
EXECUTIVE CABINET

(Pages 23 28)

To consider the Executive Cabinet minutes of the meeting held on 16
January 2020.
B

MINUTES OF MEETING THURSDAY, 13 FEBRUARY 2020 OF
EXECUTIVE CABINET

(Pages 29 34)

To consider the Executive Cabinet minutes of the meeting held on 13
February 2020.
C

MINUTES OF MEETING THURSDAY, 18 JUNE 2020 OF
EXECUTIVE CABINET

(Pages 35 38)

To consider the Executive Cabinet minutes of the meeting held on 18
June 2020.
8

NOTICE OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS

(Pages 39 - 76)

To view the latest notice of Executive Decisions click here:
https://democracy.chorley.gov.uk/mgListPlanItems.aspx?PlanId=908&RP=115
The document is also attached and correct as of 24 June 2020.
9

CRIME AND DISORDER SCRUTINY

(Pages 77 - 92)

The Crime and Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny) Regulations 2009 state that
“A crime and disorder committee shall meet to review or scrutinise decisions
made, or other action taken, in connection with the discharge by the
responsible authorities of their crime and disorder functions as the committee
considers appropriate but no less than once in every twelve month period”.
In line with this, the Committee will consider the Council’s Community Safety
Action Plan and changes to Prevent delivery.
Report of the Deputy Chief Executive enclosed. Members are to be minded
that the appendix to this item is confidential and should be treated in that
nature.
10

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY TASK GROUP - CHILD SEXUAL
EXPLOITATION - MONITORING OF RECOMMENDATIONS

(Pages 93 - 96)

To receive and consider the report of the Deputy Chief Executive (enclosed).
11

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY TASK GROUP - ROLL OUT OF
SUPERFAST BROADBAND BY BT - MONITORING OF
RECOMMENDATIONS
To receive and consider the report of the Director of Commercial Services
(enclosed).

(Pages 97 102)

12

SCRUTINY REPORTING BACK: CHORLEY COUNCIL'S ANNUAL
REPORT ON OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY IN 2019/20

(Pages 103 114)

To receive and consider the report of the Director of Governance (enclosed).
13

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME

(Pages 115 116)

To consider the Scrutiny Work Programme for 2020/21.
14

ANY URGENT BUSINESS PREVIOUSLY AGREED WITH THE CHAIR

GARY HALL
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Electronic agendas sent to Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Councillor
John Walker (Chair), Councillor Roy Lees (Vice-Chair) and Councillors John Dalton,
Peter Gabbott, Yvonne Hargreaves, Alex Hilton, Steve Holgate, Marion Lowe, Matthew Lynch,
June Molyneaux, Steve Murfitt, Debra Platt, Paul Sloan and Kim Snape.

If you need this information in a different format, such as larger print or
translation, please get in touch on 515151 or chorley.gov.uk
To view the procedure for public questions/ speaking click here
https://democracy.chorley.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD852&id=852&rpid=0&sch=
doc&cat=13021&path=13021

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Page 5

Agenda Item 1

MINUTES OF

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

Thursday, 23 January 2020

MEMBERS PRESENT:

Councillor
John Walker
(Chair),
and Councillors
Yvonne Hargreaves, Alex Hilton, Debra Platt, Paul Sloan
and Kim Snape

OFFICERS:

James Thomson
(Deputy
Director
of
Finance),
Angela Barrago
(Service
Lead
Communities),
Bernie Heggarty (Neighbourhood Priorities Officer) and
Nina Neisser (Democratic and Member Services Officer)

APOLOGIES:

Councillor John Dalton, Peter Gabbott, Steve Holgate,
Marion Lowe, Matthew Lynch and June Molyneaux

OTHER MEMBERS:

Councillor Peter Wilson (Executive Member (Resources))

20.OS.59

Minutes of meeting Thursday, 26 September 2019 of Overview and
Scrutiny Committee
Decision: That the minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 26
September 2019 be approved as a correct record for signature by the Chair.

20.OS.60

Declarations of Any Interests

There were no declarations of interest received.
20.OS.61

Public Questions

There were no public questions for consideration.
20.OS.62

Executive Cabinet Minutes

Decision: That the minutes of the Executive Cabinet meetings held on 17
October 2019 and 14 November 2019 be noted.
20.OS.63

Notice of Executive Decisions

Members of the Committee considered the Notice of Executive Decisions for
September 2019 which gave notice of key and other major decisions Executive
Members are expected to make. The Notice is reviewed on a regular basis to ensure
that it is up to date and fit for purpose.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Thursday, 23 January 2020

Agenda Page 6
20.OS.64

Agenda Item 1

Budget Scrutiny

The Executive Member for Resources, Councillor Peter Wilson, presented the report
which set out the budget position for 2020/21 including the forecast for the following
two years to 2022/23 and also presented proposals in respect of the use of forecast
resources identified in 2020/21 as well as consultation on the budget.
The budget forecasts over the next 3 years had been updated to take account of the
following;
 Due to the investments made by the Council and the efficiencies achieved,
there was no proposed increase in council tax in 2020/21
 There was no proposed increase in council tax in 2021/2022 or 2022/23, this
would be revisited every year and would be dependent on upon the outcome of
the Government announcements regarding the Fair Funding Review and
Business Rates Retention.
 Continued investment of approximately £1million that would deliver corporate
strategy priorities
 Strategies to reduce the budget deficit in the medium term.
The Committee were advised that 2019-20 was due to be the final year of the
Government’s four-year Settlement, however following the Spending Round 2019,
councils would receive a further one-year Settlement as the planned changes from the
Fair Funding Review and 75% Business Rates retention had been delayed by at least
one year until April 2021 at the earliest.
Chorley Council benefitted in 2019/20 from being a member of the Lancashire 75%
business rates pilot. The spending round 2019 announced that all 75% pilots would be
disbanded. The budget assumed that in 2020/21 the council would revert to member
of the Lancashire business rates pool as per the guidance from Government. The
spending review also announced a gradual reduction and ultimate removal of New
Homes Bonus.
With regards to Council Tax, the Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement
announced a council tax referendum principle of up to 2% in 2020/21. The council
expects a gradual slowdown in house building over the coming three years, however
there were still sites coming forward. An average 1.5% expansion of the base was
forecast in the draft budget for 2021/22 onwards.
Following discussion on the slowdown in house building, the committee were advised
that this was in relation to previous years where the borough had experienced an
increase in house building e.g. the development of Buckshaw. The Executive Member
undertook to find out the specific house building numbers.
As part of the triennial pension review the Lancashire County Pension Fund
announced an increase in employer pension contributions for 2020/21 to 2022/23 to
meet the future costs of the scheme. The contributions had increased from 14.4% to
16.4% resulting in an increase in the council’s contribution. This was lower than the
17.7% assumed in the previous year’s budget.
Members welcomed the reduction in the contributions to the pension deficit and that
the Lancashire County Pension Fund had outperformed most local authority pension
funds over the past 3 years. Looking forward the pension fund provided figures that
Overview and Scrutiny Committee Thursday, 23 January 2020

Agenda Page 7

Agenda Item 1

forecast Chorley Council’s contribution to the prior year deficit which would reduce by
approximately £500k, reducing the council’s budgeted contributions by over £1.5m
over the next three years.
Funding to Chorley Council had fallen from over £17m in 2016/17 to a forecast figure
of under £12m by 2022/2023. During this period the council will continue to experience
inflationary increases in staff and non-staff budgets. However, the council had been
ambitious in its approach to meeting the budget deficit through generating efficiency
savings and additional income.
The council had been successful in keeping costs down whilst continuing to provide
the high-quality services expected from its residents. The council would continue to
invest within Chorley borough to generate income and therefore make the council less
reliant on the increasingly uncertain funding from Government.
The Committee discussed how the Flower Show could be made more profitable and
suggested that more advertising could be done, including greater use of parish council
noticeboards. Members also discussed the options available for the council in
maintaining the bus station, regenerating the traditional markets and in-house
procurement for the leisure contract.
Despite the identified budget savings there remained large forecast budget deficits of
£1.206m in 2021/22 and £2.093m in 2022/23. To achieve a sufficient reduction in net
expenditure the Council’s strategy would be:
1. To realise savings through the procurement of its contracts
2. To identify the efficiencies through investment in infrastructure and through
exploring alternative delivery models that will enable the Council to balance the
budget whilst seeking to minimize the impact on the front-line service users
3. To make the Council more financially self-sufficient with specific emphasis on
creating investment that generates income.
Through these strategies the council will balance its budget in the medium term
Consultation on the proposed budget for 2020/21 would commence following approval
of the proposals by Executive Cabinet. The consultation would invite responses from
residents, partners, parish groups and other stakeholders through a variety of methods
including a short survey (available both in hard copy and online). Results would be
analysed and published in February for consideration as part of the budget finalisation.
The Chair thanked Cllr Peter Wilson and James Thomson for attending the meeting
and presenting the report.
Decision: that the report be noted.
20.OS.65

Health Scrutiny

Members were advised that the last meeting of the Lancashire County Council’s
Health Scrutiny had been cancelled and there was no update at this time. The next
meeting was scheduled for 4 February 2020; therefore, Councillor Margaret France
would provide an update at the meeting on 19 March.
Decision: that the update be noted.
Overview and Scrutiny Committee Thursday, 23 January 2020

Agenda Page 8
20.OS.66

Agenda Item 1

Review of Neighbourhood Working following the Boundary Review

Following the boundary review and upcoming all-out elections in May 2020, it was
agreed that neighbourhood working and neighbourhood area meetings would need to
be reviewed.
The Chair proposed that a special meeting take place on Thursday, 27 February at
6.30pm to address this. It was agreed that the Chairs of each of the neighbourhood
area meetings also be invited attend this meeting. The Committee agreed the
approach and the importance of addressing this.
Decision:
1. That a special meeting take place on Thursday, 27 February to address
neighbourhood working
2. That the Chairs from each of the Neighbourhood Area Meetings be invited
to attend.
20.OS.67

Executive Cabinet Response to the Overview and Scrutiny Task Group on
Social Housing Standards
At its meeting on 1 August 2019, the Executive Cabinet agreed 29 out of the 31
recommendations put forward by the Overview and Scrutiny Task Group on the
Quality of Social Housing, with an alternative solution for the remaining two.
It was agreed that the majority of the Task Group’s recommendations, with the
exclusion of item 12 and 13, were incorporated into a social Housing Standards
Charter, to be developed and agreed with the Registered Housing Providers.
Members welcomed the response and the Chair advised that a monitoring report
would be coming to the Committee later in the year.
Decision: that the Executive Cabinet response be noted.

20.OS.68

Reports from the Task and Finish Groups

Cllr Paul Sloan, Vice-Chair of the Task Group informed Members of the work that had
been undertaken to date as part of the Task Group Inquiry. This included sub-group
meetings with Chorley Council officers and external partners and site visits to
Lancaster City Council and GA Pet Food Partners Manufacturing Site in Bretherton to
observe best practice. A position statement was created which included where the
council currently sat in comparison to other councils and the estimated costings going
forward which fed into the 2020/21 budget proposals.
Members were advised that officers were in the process of drafting the final report.
This would be taken to the Task Group at a special meeting on 11 February, before
being circulated to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 27 February. Once
agreed, this would be taken to the Executive Cabinet in March for approval.
Decision: that the verbal update be noted.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Thursday, 23 January 2020

Agenda Page 9
20.OS.69

Agenda Item 1

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

Members considered the work programme for the Overview and Scrutiny Committee,
Performance Panel and task group topic areas for 2019/20.
The Chair highlighted how busy the Committee had been in the year to date and
following the meeting in March would have addressed all the topics outlined within the
work programme.
Decision: That the work programme be noted.

Chair

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Thursday, 23 January 2020

Date

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Page 11

Agenda Item 2

MINUTES OF

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

Thursday, 27 February 2020

MEMBERS PRESENT:

Councillor John Walker (Chair), Councillor Roy Lees
(Vice-Chair) and Councillors Peter Gabbott, Alex Hilton,
Steve Holgate,
Marion Lowe,
Matthew Lynch,
June Molyneaux, Paul Sloan and Kim Snape

OFFICERS:

Victoria Willett (Service Lead - Transformation and
Partnerships),
Angela Barrago
(Service
Lead
Communities), Bernie Heggarty (Neighbourhood Priorities
Officer), Ruth Rimmington (Democratic and Member
Services Team Leader) and Nina Neisser (Democratic and
Member Services Officer)

APOLOGIES:

Councillor
Debra Platt

OTHER MEMBERS:

Councillors Julia Berry, Terry Brown and Gillian Sharples

20.OS.71

John Dalton,

Yvonne Hargreaves

and

Declarations of Any Interests

There were no declarations of any interest received.
20.OS.72

Public Questions

There were no public questions for consideration.
20.OS.73

Reports from the Task and Finish Groups

Councillor Steve Holgate, Chair of the Task Group, presented the final report of the
Task Group on Developing the Council’s Green Agenda.
The Committee were advised that since its commencement in September 2019, the
Task Group has met numerous times and has undertaken several sub-group meetings
to consult with as many stakeholders as possible to help build an evidence base. Site
visits to Lancaster City Council and GA Pet Food Partners Manufacturing Site in
Bretherton also took place as well as students from Parklands High School meeting
with Members in the Town Hall to discuss their concerns with regards to climate
change.
Funding has been secured as part of the budget process to further the council’s
commitment to become a carbon-neutral borough by 2030. The funding will help to

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Thursday, 27 February 2020

Agenda Page 12

Agenda Item 2

appoint a climate change officer as well as setting aside reserves to help develop local
climate change initiatives such as tree planting schemes.
The recommendations put forward were based on the evidence collated by the Task
Group and if approved by Executive Cabinet in March would be progressed through
the recommended governance arrangements including a Member steering group.
Members discussed the report, in particular, public transport and bus routes through
Chorley, how supermarkets can reduce their usage of plastics, green accreditations
for local businesses, solar panels and the inclusion of the green agenda in the Local
Plan. This would all be considered in further detail by the proposed Steering Group.
Councillor Steve Holgate thanked Councillors and officers, as well as external
partners, for their contributions to the inquiry. The Committee commended the report.
Decision: That the update be noted.
20.OS.74

Review of Neighbourhood Working following the Boundary Review

Members received a report of the Director of Early Intervention and Support to help
the Committee make recommendations for new neighbourhood areas following the
ward boundary review to be submitted to Executive Cabinet for approval.
Bernie Heggarty, Neighbourhood Priorities Officer, reported that a review of
Neighbourhood Working was due to be undertaken and whilst the review is
undertaken, it is important that delivery of the programme is still maintained throughout
2020/21. In order to achieve this, the first task of the review is to create new
Neighbourhood Areas as a result of the ward boundary changes which will come into
effect in May 2020. The proposed recommendation will then be presented to the
Executive Cabinet for approval.
To aide discussions, the Committee were provided with four options outlining potential
different models. It was also important that the allocated Neighbourhood Priority
Budget be considered.
Councillor Roy Lees left the meeting at 7pm.
When considering the options, Members were keen that the meetings in June and July
2020 go ahead as the meetings in January and February had been cancelled.
Initially, Members considered option 4 as the preferred option but expressed concerns
about proposing new groupings without considering the full review of neighbourhood
working. It was suggested that the detailed review needed to consider issues such as
funding (including CIL monies), representation at meetings including consideration of
parished and non-parished areas, definition of neighbourhood working and defining
the criteria for projects.
Following further discussion, Councillor Matt Lynch
meetings go ahead on a ward basis, including the
Councillors, for a temporary 12-month period until a
working had taken place. The funding would be split
wards. Councillor Terry Brown seconded the proposal.
Overview and Scrutiny Committee Thursday, 27 February 2020

proposed that the June/July
relevant Parish and County
full review of neighbourhood
equally between the 14 new

Agenda Page 13

Agenda Item 2

It was also suggested that a working group be set up in the new municipal year to
undertake the full review and make recommendations back to the Executive Cabinet in
due course.
Councillor Julia Berry left the meeting at 7.20pm
Following debate, it was proposed by Councillor Steve Holgate and seconded by
Councillor Gillian Sharples that option 4 be recommended for a temporary 12-month
period until the full review of neighbourhood working had taken place.
A vote was taken on the proposal and the vote was lost; For: 3, Against: 5,
Abstentions: 3.
Subsequently, it was proposed by Councillor Matt Lynch and seconded by Councillor
Terry Brown that the meetings take place on a ward basis, with the funding being split
equally between the 14 wards, for a temporary 12-month period until the full review of
neighbourhood working had taken place.
A vote was taken on the proposal and the vote was carried; For: 8, Against: 2,
Abstentions: 1.
It was subsequently RESOLVED that:
1. The Committee recommend to Executive Cabinet that the forthcoming
Neighbourhood Area Meetings take place on a ward basis, with the
funding being split equally between the 14 wards, for a temporary 12month period until the full review of neighbourhood working had taken
place.
2. That a working group be set up in the new municipal year to undertake
the full review and make recommendations back to the Executive Cabinet.

Chair

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Thursday, 27 February 2020

Date

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Page 15

Agenda Item 3

MINUTES OF

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PERFORMANCE PANEL

MEETING DATE

Thursday, 30 January 2020

MEMBERS PRESENT:

Councillor John Walker (Chair), Councillor Roy Lees
(Vice-Chair) and Councillors Alex Hilton, Marion Lowe and
June Molyneaux

OFFICERS:

Chris Sinnott (Director (Early Intervention and Support)),
Rebecca Aziz-Brook
(Transformation
Programme
Coordinator) and Philippa Braithwaite (Democratic and
Member Services Officer)

APOLOGIES:

Councillor Christopher France

OTHER MEMBERS:

Councillor Peter Wilson

20.OSP.25

Minutes of meeting Thursday, 10 October 2019 of Overview and Scrutiny
Performance Panel
Decision – That the minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Performance Panel
held on 10 October 2019 be approved as a correct record for signature by the
Chair.

20.OSP.26

Declarations of Any Interests

There were no declarations of interest received.
20.OSP.27

Performance focus - Policy and Governance

The Chair, Councillor John Walker, welcomed Chris Sinnott, Director (Policy &
Governance) and Councillor Peter Wilson, Deputy Leader and Executive Member
(Resources), to the meeting.
Rebecca Aziz-Brook, Transformation Programme Co-Ordinator, presented the report
which provided contextual information with regards to the overall Directorate summary,
the budget position and the key performance summary and key project update for
2019/20. The data within the report reflected the position in quarter two.
The directorate budget was currently underspending by just under £82k, creating a
1.7% variance against the original cash budget. The biggest underspend was in
staffing due to an underspend of £50k as a result of sharing the Chief Executive post
with South Ribble and an underspend of £40k from Shared Financial Services as a
result of the vacant posts following the senior management restructure and review of
the service. With regards to key performance information, overall of the 40 indicators
Overview and Scrutiny Performance Panel Thursday, 30 January 2020

Agenda Page 16

Agenda Item 3

31 (78%) were performing on or above target, 3 (8%) were performing worse than
target but within the threshold and 6 (14%) were performing below target.
It was noted that the Policy and Governance directorate will be responsible for some
high-profile projects as part of next year’s corporate strategy delivery including
renovation works at Astley Hall, the refresh of the Council’s website, delivering Shared
Services, and delivery of sustainable public services and the green agenda, and
Councillor Wilson praised officers leading on those projects.
Members queried where Shared Services was up to. It was noted that appointments to
shared posts were made before Christmas which would go live from 1 April but were
currently working in shadow form. Also from 1 April, staff would be transferred
between South Ribble and Chorley, with the Finance, Transformation and
Partnerships teams being employed by Chorley, and Communications and Visitor
Economy, Democratic and Legal Services being employed by South Ribble.
In general, the employing Council would be the base for that team, however some
site-dependent roles (e.g. Democratic Services) would transfer to South Ribble as
their employer but would not move physically. Members were concerned that
communication with officers would change and it was noted that this was likely;
although staff from each team would be available at both sites, appointments might
replace drop-in meetings.
Officers were currently concentrating on seating arrangements and ensuring access to
systems, but a larger piece of work was underway to align terms and conditions and it
was noted that a full reviews of services and likely restructures would take place after
1 April. In response to Members’ queries regarding the TUPE protection period, it was
noted that no protection period is needed until there is significant business reason to
change terms and conditions and only one intended measure was being implemented
at this stage; a change in date for salary payments.
With regards to involvement of the unions, Members noted that officers had been
meeting on a monthly basis with South Ribble’s Unison branch and that Chorley’s
Unison branch had recently agreed to re-engage with the process. Pay scales were
one of the things needed to be aligned as, although both Councils used the same
spinal column points, they operated different grade structures. It was noted that pay
was protected up to limit of £5,000 under the current policy in both Councils, with 12
months full protection and part-protection after that. In response to Members’ follow-up
queries, it was noted that the intention was to align terms and conditions, not make
anyone financially worse off.
Members were concerned about the effect on staff morale and urged officers to
ensure clear communication regarding harmonisation was carried out in an open and
structured way. It was noted that the previous delays to Shared Services had resulted
in staff resignations, so officers were driving changes through now the vision and
strategy were clear.
With regards to other aspects of the Directorate’s performance, Members queried the
revenue figures for the Lancastrian Suite and it was noted that these reflected the
cancellations of pre-Christmas events due to the general election. Members queried
sickness absence performance figures and noted that there had been a reduction in
long term sickness but not for short-term absences. It was advised that return to work
Overview and Scrutiny Performance Panel Thursday, 30 January 2020

Agenda Page 17

Agenda Item 3

interviews were key to making improvements in order to identify and address issues,
particularly for mental health illnesses.
Decision – That the report be noted.
20.OSP.28

Quarter 2 Performance Report 2019/20

The Performance Panel considered a monitoring report from the Director (Policy and
Governance) which was presented at the Executive Cabinet on 14 November 2019.
Rebecca Aziz-Brook, Transformation Programme Co-Ordinator, advised that the
report set out the performance against the delivery of the Corporate Strategy and key
performance indicators during the second quarter of 2019/20, 1 July to 30 September
2019.
Overall, performance of key projects was excellent, with 11 (92%) of the projects rated
as green or complete and one (8%) project currently rated as amber with the action
plan for this project contained within the report. In response to Members’ queries, it
was noted that the outline proposal for Shady Lane was being reconsidered but
progress was expected this year.
Performance of the Corporate Strategy indicators and key service delivery measures
was also excellent with 100% of Corporate Strategy measures and 88% of key service
delivery measures performing on or above target or within the 5% threshold. It was
noted that those indicators performing below target had action plans outlined with
measures to improve performance.
Members queried the missed bin performance, and it was noted this was largely down
to the changes to the collection rounds and use of agency staff. Financial deductions
were now being made from FCC’s monthly contract payments for failing to meet
agreed standards, and FCC were recruiting more permanent staff. In response to
Members’ questions it was advised that a missed bin collection reported on noncollection day would not count in these figures, and that technology to confirm whether
a bin had been put out was now in place and would be used once the issues with
existing rounds had been resolved.
Members discussed the 2019 Indices of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) update released by
the Ministry of Housing Communities and Local Government. It was noted that the
overall message for Chorley was positive with the borough now less deprived than it
was in 2015, but that Chorley North East and Coppull did not follow this trend and
were more deprived. Members queried how this was being addressed and it was
noted that the issues were very complex and, as they were difficult to address directly,
more emphasis was being placed on prioritising these areas when planning
community engagement.
Decision – That the report be noted.

Chair

Overview and Scrutiny Performance Panel Thursday, 30 January 2020

Date

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Page 19

Agenda Item 4

MINUTES OF

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PERFORMANCE PANEL

MEETING DATE

Thursday, 5 March 2020

MEMBERS PRESENT:

Councillor John Walker (Chair), and Councillors Roy Lees,
Christopher France, Alex Hilton and June Molyneaux

OFFICERS:

Mark Lester
(Director
(Commercial
Services)),
Victoria Willett (Service Lead - Transformation and
Partnerships) and Ruth Rimmington (Democratic and
Member Services Team Leader)

APOLOGIES:

Councillor Marion Lowe

OTHER MEMBERS:

Councillor Alistair Bradley

20.OSP.29

Minutes of meeting Thursday, 30 January 2020 of Overview and Scrutiny
Performance Panel
Decision – That the minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Performance Panel
held on 30 January 2020 be approved as a correct record for signature by the
Chair.

20.OSP.30

Declarations of Any Interests

There were no declarations of interest received.
20.OSP.31

Performance focus - Commercial Services

The Chair, Councillor John Walker, welcomed Mark Lester, Director of Commercial
Services and Councillor Alistair Bradley, Executive Leader and Executive Member
(Economic Development and Public Service Reform), to the meeting.
Victoria Willett, Service Lead - Transformation and Partnerships, presented the report
which provided contextual information with regards to the overall Directorate summary,
the budget position and the key performance summary and key project update for
2019/20.
The recent senior management restructure has changed some of the services within
the Directorate. The functions that make up the Commercial Services directorate are:
• Accommodation – operational management of the Council’s housing units, including
Cotswold Supported Housing and Primrose Gardens Extra Care Scheme.
• Market Walk and Town Centre – management of Market Walk shopping centre,
Chorley Markets, town centre car parks and borough wide CCTV monitoring services.

Overview and Scrutiny Performance Panel Thursday, 5 March 2020

Agenda Page 20

Agenda Item 4

• Property and Facilities – the asset management and maintenance of all council
owned buildings and assets.
Members noted that there have been difficulties in recruiting to some specialised
posts, but these have now been appointed to.
There is an overspend across the Directorate, but Councillor Bradley noted that this
reflected the nature of the Directorate in delivering projects and taking investment
opportunities as they arise.
Some performance indicators are not within the Council’s control, such as those
relating to the European Regional Development Fund. It is also not possible to
measure Cotswold Supported Housing in the usual way due to the nature of the
service.
In the key projects update the “Deliver the Housing Company” will be become
“develop the business plan for the wholly owned
Company”.
The Directorate is not in scope for phase one of Shared Services, but officers are
proactively working closely with colleagues at South Ribble. This includes the
potential to share an agency surveyor and sharing knowledge on IDOX software which
is used by both authorities.
There is a shortage of developed land for businesses to occupy. Developers make
more money from housing land and the council face difficulties when developers are
successful in changing the use of land from business to housing. There are not many
brownfield sites in Chorley. The Leader, Councillor Bradley, expressed his wish to
incentivise businesses to move to Chorley from Manchester and Liverpool. This would
have the added benefit of reducing commuting distances in line with the council’s
green aspirations. This is a complex issue.
Members queried the current position regarding the Shady Lane and Alker Lane sites.
It is hoped that full planning permission will be submitted in the summer. The Shady
Lane site is more difficult.
Councillor Bradley explained there are projects in the pipeline, including at Tatton and
within the town centre. There are things that the council can do to have a positive
influence in the town centre.
Decision – That the report be noted.
20.OSP.32

Business planning update

The Performance Panel considered a monitoring report from the Deputy Chief
Executive which provides an update on the progress of delivery for the service level
projects outlined in the service business plans.
Victoria Willett, Service Lead - Transformation and Partnerships, presented the report
and explained that a similar approach will be taken to the previous year including
engagement with staff, the production of a plan on a page per service and
monitoring/reporting through the MyProjects system. This year there will be a focus
Overview and Scrutiny Performance Panel Thursday, 5 March 2020

Agenda Page 21

Agenda Item 4

on identifying interdependencies between departments and projects where support will
be needed from the newly formed Programme Management Office.
A review of 15 business plans produced last year has been completed with an overall
total of 136 projects and of those:
 93 are ongoing (69%)
 34 are complete (25%)
 2 are closed (1%)
 7 have not started (5%)
Members welcomed the approach of an away day to deliver business planning
sessions with staff to engage them in the process.
Members discussed the learning curve undertaken in supporting the Syrian
resettlement programme and noted that it is not known at the current time if more
families will be coming to Chorley. The learning, particularly around interpretation to
get to the root of issues, will be taken forward to support any future families.
Councillor Alex Hilton left the meeting at 7.10pm.
Recruitment processes will be revised following the implementation of shared services
on 1 April.
The Chair commented on the positive work the council is undertaking for the residents
of Chorley.
Decision – That the report be noted.

Chair

Overview and Scrutiny Performance Panel Thursday, 5 March 2020

Date

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Page 23

Agenda Item 7a

MINUTES OF

EXECUTIVE CABINET

MEETING DATE

Thursday, 16 January 2020

MEMBERS PRESENT:

Councillor
Alistair Bradley
(Chair),
Councillor
Peter Wilson
(Vice-Chair)
and
Councillors
Beverley Murray, Graham Dunn, Alistair Morwood and
Adrian Lowe

OFFICERS:

Gary Hall (Chief Executive), Chris Sinnott (Deputy Chief
Executive), Asim Khan (Director (Customer and
Digital)), Mark Lester (Director (Commercial Services)),
Chris Moister
(Director
(Governance)),
Philippa Braithwaite (Democratic and Member Services
Officer), James Thomson (Interim Financial Services
Manager), Jo Motteram and Rachel Salter (Strategic
Development Officer)

OTHER MEMBERS:

Councillors Aaron Beaver, Eric Bell, Mark Clifford,
Gordon France,
Margaret France,
Danny Gee,
Tom Gray,
Yvonne Hargreaves,
Steve Holgate,
John Walker and Neville Whitham

20.EC.158

Minutes of meeting Thursday, 14 November 2019 of Executive Cabinet

Decision: That the minutes of the Executive Cabinet meeting held on 14
November 2019 be confirmed as a correct record for signature by the Executive
Leader.
20.EC.159

Declarations of Any Interests

There were no declarations of interest.
20.EC.160

Public Questions

There were no public questions.
20.EC.161

Draft budget 2020/21 and summary position over the medium term

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), presented the report of the
Chief Finance Officer which sets out the budget position for 2020/21 including the
forecast for the following 2 years to 2022/23 and also presents the relevant proposals
in respect of the use of forecast resources identified in 2020/21 and budget
consultation.
Members noted there was no proposed increase in council tax in 2021/22 or 2022/23
due to the investments made by the Council and the efficiencies achieved. This would
Executive Cabinet Thursday, 16 January 2020

Agenda Page 24

Agenda Item 7a

be revisited every year and be dependent upon the outcome of the Government
announcements regarding the Fair Funding Review and Business Rates Retention. It
was also noted that investment of approximately £1m would be continued to deliver
corporate strategy priorities alongside strategies to reduce the budget deficit in the
medium term.
In response to Members’ questions, it was noted that the Council were liaising with
local groups and Parish Councils regarding VE Day celebrations, that the investment
in the markets would be well publicised, and that considerations for Armed Forces Day
were underway.
Decision:
That Members agree the contents of this report in order to start the budget
consultation process and note the following proposed budget items, in particular:
 No proposed increase in council tax for 2020/21 and no proposed cuts to
services.
 The forecast balanced budget for 2020/21 and the forecast budget position in
2021/22 and 2022/23.
 The changes to the capital programme 2020/21 to 2022/23.
Reasons for Recommendation(s):
To progress the Council’s 2020/21 budget setting process to achieve an approved and
balanced budget.
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:
None, setting the budget is a statutory responsibility.
20.EC.162

Review of Fees & Charges
Councillor Beverley Murray arrived at 6.52pm.

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), presented the report of the
Chief Finance Officer which revises some of the discretionary fees and charges the
council currently makes to bring the income in line with the cost of delivering these
services.
Decision:
That the proposed 2% increase in fees and charges outlined in table 2 of the report be
approved and it be further noted that the proposals will form part of the final budget
papers to be presented to Full Council in February 2020.
Reasons for Recommendation(s):
The Council should endeavour, when it is legal and feasible to do so, to charge users
to meet the full cost of providing services.
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:
Without a regular review of fees and charges, new opportunities to introduce new
services and charges may be missed. In addition, without increasing charges the cost
of delivering services may not be recovered in full.
20.EC.163

Strawberry Fields Digital Office Hub - Grant of Leases

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), presented the report of the
Director (Commercial Services) which seeks authority for the grant of leases for offices
Executive Cabinet Thursday, 16 January 2020

Agenda Page 25

Agenda Item 7a

at the Strawberry Fields Digital Office Hub. It was noted that 65% of fixed office space
had been let or was under offer.
Decision:
That the Executive Member for Resources have delegated authority to approve the
terms for all leases at the Strawberry Fields Digital Office Hub where the proposed
terms are in accordance with commercial rates and the financial model, and to
authorise the Director of Governance to complete leases on the approved terms.
Reasons for Recommendation(s):
To enable terms provisionally agreed with tenants to be approved without the need to
wait for a scheduled Cabinet meeting which may lead to delay in the processing of
applications where the proposed terms meet local market commercial rates and
comply with the Council approved financial model for the facility.
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:
To report each transaction for cabinet approval will lead to delay in the processing of
applications.
20.EC.164

Community Resilience

Councillor Beverley Murray, Executive Member (Early Intervention and Support),
presented the report of the Director (Early Intervention and Support) which presents
the Council’s Community Resilience Framework as the guidance tool to inform how we
engage and work with communities to increase resilience and deliver better outcomes
for communities and residents.
Decision:
1. To approve the framework and develop a project mandate for the
implementation of the framework as a 2020/2021 Corporate Strategy project.
2. To review and update the framework annually so that it remains current and
takes advantage of developments and changes that influence its delivery.
Reasons for Recommendation(s):
To ensure our approach to working with our communities is consistent by using the
framework across the Council.
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:
To not implement a standardised framework would allow for inconsistency and
disjointed approaches which would not deliver sustainable and long-term resolves to
public service issues, health inequalities and prospects for residents.
20.EC.165

Exclusion of the Public and Press

Decision: To exclude the press and public for the following items of business on
the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act
1972.
20.EC.166

Whittle GP Surgery

Councillor Alistair Bradley, Executive Member (Economic Development and Public
Service Reform), presented the confidential report of the Director (Commercial
Executive Cabinet Thursday, 16 January 2020

Agenda Page 26

Agenda Item 7a

Services) which seeks approvals for the appointment of a contractor to undertake the
remaining design and construction of Whittle GP Surgery.
Decision:
1. To approve an open tender procurement for the appointment of a contractor to
complete the remaining Whittle GP surgery design and construction of Whittle
GP Surgery.
2. To approve the evaluation criterion.
3. To approve the use of a JCT (2016) Design and Build Contract for the
appointment of a Contractor to complete the Whittle GP Surgery development.
4. To approve the appointment of Pick Everard to undertake Employer’s Agent
responsibilities under the JCT Contract, on behalf of the Council.
5. That the contract award for the JCT design and build Contract to the most
economically advantageous tenderer is delegated to Executive Member
(Resources).
6. To acknowledge the programme for the procurement and progress of the
development.
Reasons for Recommendation(s):
To ensure that value for money for the Whittle GP Surgery development is achieved,
to provide an opportunity for local contractors to tender for a Council development,
and to ensure that procurement procedure rules are adhered to.
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:
1. To use an existing framework to appoint a contractor. This option has been
rejected as it will negate the opportunity for local contractors to tender for the
development. Contractors appointed via frameworks are generally large
construction contractors rather than local smaller contractors. The use of an
open tender will allow market rates to be obtained that can be used as a
benchmark for future projects. Using an open tender procurement may offer
better value for money against a framework procurement.
2. To use an alternative form of contract such as the NEC Engineering and
Construction. This option has been rejected as it unlikely that the smaller local
contractors will have the resources to administer such a contract.
3. To tender the Employers Agent support services. This option has been rejected
as Pick Everard are intrinsically linked to the project through their current
involvement. Changes to the support time is likely to have a negative impact on
the progress and programme of the scheme.
20.EC.167

Strawberry Fields Digital Office Hub - Grant of a Lease - Office 41, 42 & 43

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), presented the confidential
report of the Director (Commercial Services) which seeks approval to terms agreed for
the Grant of a 3-year lease of Offices 41, 42 & 43 at Strawberry Fields Digital Office
Hub.
Decision:
That the terms are approved and authority is granted to issue instructions to the
Director of Governance for the completion of the Lease
Reasons for Recommendation(s):
To generate revenue and support economic growth in Chorley.
Executive Cabinet Thursday, 16 January 2020

Agenda Page 27

Agenda Item 7a

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:
None.
20.EC.168
LCC service changes affecting Home Improvement Agency service
delivery
Councillor Graham Dunn, Executive Member (Homes and Housing), presented the
confidential report of the Director (Early Intervention and Support) regarding the
cessation of the Integrated Home Improvement Service (IHIS) which is funded by
Lancashire County Council (LCC), and LCC’s intention to withdraw from the supply
and maintenance of lifting and other equipment provided under Disabled Facilities
Grant.
Decision:
1. To note the cessation of the IHIS service with effect from 31st March 2020.
2. To approve the recommendation for the Council to enter into a Collaboration
Agreement with LCC in respect of the Minor Aids and Adaptations service, to
take effect on 1st April 2020.
3. To approve the recommendation for the Council to conduct a procurement
exercise to appoint a sub-contractor to deliver the Minor Aids and Adaptations
contract.
4. To give delegated authority to the Executive Member (Resources) to approve
the appointment of a sub-contractor following the procurement exercise.
5. To note LCC’s intention to withdraw from the supply and maintenance of lifting
and other equipment which is provided to applicants for Disabled Facilities
Grant.
6. To permit Officers to explore alternative arrangements, including framework
options, for the supply and maintenance of lifting and other equipment. It is
further recommended
7. That a decision on the future arrangements for the supply and maintenance of
lifting equipment be the subject of an Executive Member Decision (EMD) by the
Executive Member (Home and Housing).
Reasons for Recommendation(s):
1. The recommendation to accept a Collaboration Agreement from LCC in respect
of the Minor Aids and Adaptations service, and the proposed procurement
arrangements to appoint a sub-contractor to deliver this service, are in keeping
with the established arrangements which govern the current IHIS service.
2. The Council has partnered with LCC to deliver a Minor Aids and Adaptations
service successfully since July 2015 and has successfully used a subcontractor throughout that period.
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:
An option to decline LCC’s invitation to enter into a Collaboration Agreement was
considered but rejected as it would mean that the Council would forfeit a valuable
opportunity to deliver important services for vulnerable Chorley residents and would
forego an opportunity to engage with such residents in a way which could provide
added value.

Chair
Executive Cabinet Thursday, 16 January 2020

Date

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Page 29

Agenda Item 7b

MINUTES OF

EXECUTIVE CABINET

MEETING DATE

Thursday, 13 February 2020

MEMBERS PRESENT:

Councillor Peter Wilson (Vice-Chair) in the Chair and
Councillors Beverley Murray, Alistair Morwood and
Adrian Lowe

OFFICERS:

Gary Hall (Chief Executive), Chris Sinnott (Deputy Chief
Executive), Chris Moister (Director (Governance)),
Asim Khan
(Director
(Customer
and
Digital)),
Mark Lester
(Director
(Commercial
Services)),
Rachel Salter (Strategic Development Officer) and
Philippa Braithwaite (Democratic and Member Services
Officer)

APOLOGIES:

Councillors Alistair Bradley and Graham Dunn

OTHER MEMBERS:

Councillors
Aaron Beaver,
Eric Bell,
Julia Berry,
Mark Clifford,
Gordon France,
Margaret France,
Peter Gabbott,
Tom Gray,
Yvonne Hargreaves,
June Molyneaux, Kim Snape and John Walker

20.EC.169

Minutes of meeting Thursday, 16 January 2020 of Executive Cabinet

Decision: That the minutes of the Executive Cabinet meeting held on 16 January
2020 be confirmed as a correct record for signature by the Executive Leader.
20.EC.170

Declarations of Any Interests

There were no declarations of interest.
20.EC.171

Public Questions

There were no public questions.
20.EC.172

Cowling Farm

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), presented the report of the
Director (Commercial Services) which provides an update on the position as regards
the delivery of the mixed-use Cowling Farm site to include specific reference to the
delivery of the Gypsy and Traveller (G & T) site.

Executive Cabinet Thursday, 13 February 2020

Agenda Page 30

Agenda Item 7b

Members noted the estimated costs for each option detailed in the report, which were
higher than originally thought. Members were not satisfied that all possibilities have
been looked into and, as such, requested officers to revisit the options available.
Decision:
1. Officers are requested to revisit the options at Cowling to determine if the costs
of delivery can be further reduced, whilst still meeting the standards required to
obtain planning consent.
2. Officers are requested to review other sites (presently not allocated for a G&T
site) and bring forward additional costed options to meet the G&T current
requirement of 5 pitches. These sites may include sites previously considered
during the allocation process but discounted due to the size.
Reasons for Recommendation(s):
To allow the progress of the delivery of the G & T allocation in line with the
requirements of the 2012 – 2026 Local Plan.
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:
Delay the delivery of the gypsy and traveller site to co-inside with the delivery of the
remainder of the CBC and HE land. This was rejected due to the prolonged and
uncertain timetable for the delivery of the wider site.
20.EC.173

Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring 2019/20 Quarter 3

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), presented the report of the
Chief Finance Officer which sets out the provisional revenue and capital outturn
figures for the Council as compared against the budgets and efficiency savings targets
set for the financial year 2019/20.
Decision
1. To note the full year forecast position for the 2019/20 revenue budget and
capital investment programme.
2. To approve for the contribution of £77,600 from in year revenue underspends to
finance the migration of property data into digital formats.
3. To approve for the contribution of £98,500 from in-year revenue underspends to
the Change Management Reserve to finance one-off redundancy and pension
strain costs arising from transformation and shared service strategies.
4. To note the forecast position on the Council's reserves.
5. Request that Council note the capital programme to be delivered in 2019/20 to
2022/23 and to approve the adjustments outlined at paragraph 50 of the report.
Reasons for Recommendation(s):
To ensure the Council’s budgetary targets are achieved.
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:
None.
20.EC.174

Quarter 3 Performance Report 2019/20

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), presented the report of the
Director (Policy & Governance) which sets out the performance against the delivery of
the Corporate Strategy and key performance indicators during the third quarter of
2019/20, 1 October to 31 December 2019.
Executive Cabinet Thursday, 13 February 2020

Agenda Page 31

Agenda Item 7b

Overall, performance of key projects is excellent with ten (83%) of the projects now
rated as green or complete and two projects (17%) currently rated as amber with the
action plans for these projects contained within the report. Performance of the
Corporate Strategy indicators and key service delivery measures is also good with
84% of Corporate Strategy measures and 88% of key service delivery measures
performing on or above target or within the 5% threshold. Those indicators performing
below target have action plans outlined with measures to improve performance.
Decision:
To note the report.
Reasons for Recommendation(s):
To facilitate the on-going analysis and management of the Council’s performance in
delivering the Corporate Strategy.
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:
None.
20.EC.175

Exclusion of the Public and Press

Decision: To exclude the press and public for the following items of business on
the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act
1972.
20.EC.176

Allocation of Community Infrastructure Levy Funds

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), presented the confidential
report of the Deputy Chief Executive which seeks approval for the allocation of main
CIL monies to infrastructure projects which are on the interim Infrastructure Funding
Statement.
Decision:
To approve the allocation of Community Infrastructure Levy monies for £1,806,022.40
for spend on:
 The cost of installing footpaths, parking, lighting to open space, landscaping
and the play area refurbishment at King George V Playing Fields;
 Open up Footpath 9-2-FP42 (between Bagganley Lane and Froome Street) and
improve Footpath 9-2-FP15 that links to the Leeds and Liverpool Canal and
Healey Nab;
 Provision of car park to facilitate event parking for Astley Park and Westway on
Westway, Euxton; and
 Highways and infrastructure (the provision of access to and within the site) &
relocation of Eaves Lane GP Surgery and Community Centre Development at
Tatton, Chorley.
Reasons for Recommendation(s):
To allocate the CIL Infrastructure Fund in the way it is intended and ensure the
methodology of how it is allocated is transparent
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:
None.
Executive Cabinet Thursday, 13 February 2020

Agenda Page 32

20.EC.177

Agenda Item 7b

Westway Pavilion Contractor Appointment

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), presented the confidential
report of the Deputy Chief Executive which seeks approval for the appointment of
Walter Carefoot & Sons Ltd to construct the pavilion, car parking and access at
Westway Sports Hub and the appointment of Duncan Ross Land Drainage Ltd to
deliver the grass pitch improvements at Westway Sports Hub.
Decision:
1. To approve the award of the contract for the construction of the pavilion, car
parking and access at Westway Sports Hub to Walter Carefoot & Sons Ltd.
2. To approve the award of the contract for the installation of grass pitch
improvements at Westway Sports Hub to Duncan Ross Land Drainage Ltd.
Reasons for Recommendation(s):
The approved procurement methodologies have been followed and Walter Carefoot &
Sons Ltd and Duncan Ross land Drainage Ltd have been selected as the Preferred
Contractors.
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:
None.
20.EC.178

Council Chamber Project - Update

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), presented the confidential
report of the Director (Governance) which provides an update on the progress of the
refurbishment project.
Decision:
To note the report.
Reasons for Recommendation(s):
1. As a community leader our publicly accessible meeting rooms should meet the
required standards and have the capacity to seat as many members of the
public as possible.
2. In line with the new green agenda within the Corporate Strategy the furniture is
being refurbished rather than purchasing new furniture.
3. The provision of the facilities to web cast meetings will enable all residents to
observe the decision-making process.
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:
Not to undertake the refurbishment.
20.EC.179

Review of Large Commissioning

Councillor Bev Murray, Executive Member (Early Intervention), presented the
confidential report of the Deputy Chief Executive which provides the findings of a
review of the current commissioning process which was implemented in 2017/18. It
provides recommendations to improve the process for allocation, to be implemented
from the 2020/21 financial year.
Decision:
Executive Cabinet Thursday, 13 February 2020

Agenda Page 33

Agenda Item 7b

1. To continue the process of allocating third sector support through a
commissioned service model.
2. To commission the services based on the distribution of funding as outlined in
the report for a further year.
3. To give the Executive Member (Early Intervention) the delegated authority to
approve the preferred provider for each service following a commissioning
process.
Reasons for Recommendation(s):
The recommendations are proposed to reflect the council’s commitment to supporting
third sector groups and development. The approach will maximise the impact of the
commissioning budget by ensuring that the existing commissions continue to provide
value for money and align with the council priorities by tendering for one year while
allowing for a thorough rescoping of the commissioning process to take place.
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:
Not to provide support for the third sector given the current financial climate, however
this option has been rejected on the basis that it would reduce the council’s ability to
direct funding to the areas where needs are greatest and to ensure a sustainable third
sector to complement council provision.

Chair

Executive Cabinet Thursday, 13 February 2020

Date

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Page 35

Agenda Item 7c

MINUTES OF

EXECUTIVE CABINET

MEETING DATE

Thursday, 18 June 2020

MEMBERS PRESENT:

Councillor
Alistair Bradley
(Chair),
Councillor
Peter Wilson
(Vice-Chair)
and
Councillors
Beverley Murray, Graham Dunn, Alistair Morwood and
Adrian Lowe

OFFICERS:

Gary Hall (Chief Executive), Chris Sinnott (Deputy Chief
Executive), Asim Khan (Director (Customer and
Digital)), Mark Lester (Director (Commercial Services)),
Chris Moister
(Director
(Governance)),
Philippa Braithwaite (Democratic and Member Services
Officer), James Thomson (Interim Financial Services
Manager), Nina Neisser (Democratic and Member
Services Officer), Ruth Rimmington (Democratic and
Member Services Team Leader), Angela Barrago
(Service Lead - Communities), Cowton, Emma Marshall
(Service Lead - ICT) and Jane Norris (Customer and
Transactional Services Team Leader)

OTHER MEMBERS:

Councillors Aaron Beaver, Julia Berry, Val Caunce,
Mark Clifford,
Christopher France,
Gordon France,
Margaret France,
Danny Gee,
Tom Gray,
Yvonne Hargreaves,
Steve Holgate,
Roy Lees,
Matthew Lynch, June Molyneaux and John Walker

20.EC.187

Minutes of meeting Thursday, 12 March 2020 of Executive Cabinet

Decision: That the minutes of the Executive Cabinet meeting held on 12 March
2020 be confirmed as a correct record for signature by the Executive Leader.
20.EC.188

Declarations of Any Interests

There were no declarations of interest.
20.EC.189

Public Questions

There were no public questions.
20.EC.190

Quarter 4 Performance Report 2019/20

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), presented the report of the
Director (Policy and Governance) which sets out the performance against the delivery
Executive Cabinet Thursday, 18 June 2020

Agenda Page 36

Agenda Item 7c

of the Corporate Strategy and key performance indicators during the fourth quarter of
2019/20, 1 January to 31 March 2020.
Overall performance of key projects is excellent with ten (77%) of the projects rated as
green, and three projects (23%) currently rated as amber, with the action plans for
each of these projects contained within this report. Performance of the Corporate
Strategy indicators and key service delivery measures is also excellent with 83% of
Corporate Strategy measures and 75% of key service delivery measures performing
on or above target or within the 5% threshold. Those indicators performing below
target have action plans outlined with measures to improve performance.
Members discussed the report, noting the cancellation of Mayflower events and the
changes to the schedule of works to Astley Hall, and praising the Waste Collection
Team for their efforts during lockdown.
Decision:
That the report be noted.
Reasons for Recommendation(s):
To facilitate the on-going analysis and management of the Council’s performance in
delivering the Corporate Strategy.
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:
None.
20.EC.191

Homelessness and rough sleeping strategy and review 2019-2024

Councillor Graham Dunn, Executive Member (Homes and Housing), presented the
report of the Deputy Chief Executive which outlines the homelessness and rough
sleeping review and strategy.
Members noted that Chorley was in a good position because of the method taken in
previous years to focus on early intervention, and this strategy sought to continue this
approach. Two population groups presented slightly elevated figures (LGBTQ+ and
Pakistani) but it was noted that a rigorous response was provided when needed.
Decision:
That the draft homelessness and rough sleeping review (appendix 1) and strategy
(appendix 2) be approved.
Reasons for Recommendation(s):
Publishing a Homelessness Review and Strategy are statutory requirements and the
previous document is due to be renewed, the draft review and strategy meet these
requirements.
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:
Due to statutory requirements for a homelessness review and strategy no other
options could be considered.
20.EC.192

Exclusion of the Public and Press

Decision: To exclude the press and public for the following items of business on
the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as
Executive Cabinet Thursday, 18 June 2020

Agenda Page 37

Agenda Item 7c

defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act
1972.
20.EC.193

Key Partnerships Update

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), presented the confidential
report of the Director (Policy and Governance) which provides an update on the
performance of the Council’s key partnership arrangements.
Decision:
That the report be noted.
Reasons for Recommendation(s):
To ensure effective monitoring of the Council’s key partnerships.
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:
No alternative options considered.
20.EC.194

Tatton Development Procurement

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), presented the confidential
report of the Director (Commercial Services) which seeks approval for the proposed
procurement mechanism for the appointment of a contractor to undertake the
remaining design and construction of the Tatton Development and to appoint
contractors for engineering and construction and also for administration support.
Decision:
1. To approve a framework procurement using the OJEU compliant Construction
Impact Framework (CIF) for the appointment of a contractor to complete the
remaining Tatton Development design and construction.
2. To acknowledge that the contractor appointment through CIF will involve a mini
competition between three contractors.
3. To approve the evaluation criterion for the mini-competition.
4. To approve the use of a NEC 4 Engineering and Construction Contract (ECC),
Option A (fixed price contract with activity schedule) to appoint the successful
contractor.
5. To approve the appointment of a consultant to provide contract administration
support.
6. That the contract award for the NEC 4 Contract is delegated to Executive
Member (Resources).
7. That the contract award for contract administration support is delegated to
Executive Member (Resources).
8. To acknowledge that a further financial update will be reported to Council in
July 2020 prior to appoint of a Contractor.
9. To acknowledge the Homes England funding programme.
Reasons for Recommendation(s):
1. To ensure that value for money for the Tatton development is achieved.
2. To ensure that procurement procedure rules are adhered to.
3. To ensure that the Homes England Funding programme is met.
4. To benefit from additional community support using the CIF.
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:
Executive Cabinet Thursday, 18 June 2020

Agenda Page 38

Agenda Item 7c

1. OJEU procurement, this would not allow the Homes England funding
timescales to be met.
2. Use an alternative framework. Other frameworks have been rejected as the
Construction Impact Framework aligns with the aspirations of the Tatton
Development to involve the community and will provide opportunities through
the reinvestment of a proportion of the fee, to involve the community and make
further improvements in the local area.
3. To use an alternative form of contract such as the JCT Design and Build
Contract. This option has been rejected as the NEC 4 ECC offers a better
mechanism for managing programme and risk.
20.EC.195

Leisure Contract Award Decision

Councillor Beverley Murray, Executive Member (Early Intervention), presented the
confidential report of the Deputy Chief Executive which seeks approval to award the
Leisure Contract to the preferred bidder as outlined in an addendum to this report.
Decision:
1. That Executive Cabinet approve the award of the Leisure Contract to the
preferred bidder in recognition of the procurement process being successfully
employed.
2. To note that a request for a capital expenditure budget will be taken to Full
Council in July 2020 for investment in the leisure facilities. A request for CIL
funding will be made to Executive Cabinet before the new contract begins in
October 2020.
Reasons for Recommendation(s):
The preferred bidder has been recommended as a result of compliance with the
procurement process agreed with Executive Cabinet on 14th March 2019.
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:
The option to delay the report was rejected on the premise that it would impact upon
contract mobilisation and jeopardise the contract start date.

Chair

Executive Cabinet Thursday, 18 June 2020

Date

Chorley Council – Notice of Executive Decisions

2.

A ‘Key’ Decision is defined as:
a) Any executive decision which is likely to result in the Council incurring significant expenditure or the making of savings where there is:
 a change in service provision that impacts upon the service revenue budget by £100,000 or more; or
 a contract worth £100,000 or more; or
 a new or unprogrammed capital scheme of £100,000 or more.
b) Any executive decision which will have a significant impact in environmental, physical, social or economic terms on communities living or working
in two or more electoral wards. This includes any plans or strategies which are not within the meaning of the Council’s Policy Framework set out
in Article 4 of the Council’s Constitution.
c) Under the Access to Information Procedure Rules set out in the Council’s Constitution, a ‘Key’ Decision may not be taken, unless 28 days notice
have been given in this document;
d) The law and the Council’s Constitution provide for urgent key decisions to be made, even though they have not been included in this document in
accordance with General Exception and Special Urgency provisions.

3.

The Executive Cabinet is made up of the Executive Leader, Deputy Leader and four Executive Members with the following portfolios:
Executive Leader and Executive Member (Economic Development and Public Service
Councillor Alistair Bradley
Reform)
Deputy Executive Leader and Executive Member (Resources)
Councillor Peter Wilson
Executive Member (Early Intervention)
Councillor Beverley Murray
Acting Executive Member (Homes and Housing)
Councillor Graham Dunn
Executive Member (Public Protection)
Councillor Alistair Morwood
Executive Member (Customer, Advice and Streetscene Services)
Councillor Adrian Lowe

4.

Copies of the Council’s Constitution and agenda and minutes for all meetings of the Council may be accessed on the Council’s website:
www.chorley.gov.uk. If there are any queries, including objections to items being considered in private, please contact the Council on 01257 515151
or email contact@chorley.gov.uk. Please note representations should be received 14 days before the date the decision is due to be taken.

Gary Hall, Chief Executive
Last updated: 19 June 2020

Agenda Item 8

This document gives 28 days notice of ‘key’ and other major decisions which the Executive Cabinet and Executive Members expect to take. The
document is updated as required and is available to the public on the Council’s website at www.chorley.gov.uk or from the Town Hall, Market Street,
Chorley, PR7 1DP.

Agenda Page 39

1.

Details of the
Decision to be
taken

Decision to be
taken by

Relevant
Portfolio
Holder

Reason the
decision is key

Earliest Date
decision can
be taken

Will the public
be excluded?

Are there any
background
papers?

Documents to
be considered
by Decision
taker

Future meetings of the Executive Cabinet where there is an intention to hold part of a meeting in private: 30 July, 15 October, 12 November and 10
December 2020, 21 January, 25 February and 25 March 2021
July
Executive
Member
(Economic
Development
and Public
Service
Reform)

Open Space,
Sport &
Recreation
Strategy
Summary and
Action Plan

Executive
Cabinet

Executive
Member
(Economic
Development
and Public
Service
Reform)

Review of
Procurement
Route for Alker
Lane

Executive
Cabinet

Executive
Member
(Economic
Development
and Public
Service
Reform)

A contract
worth £100,000
or more

A contract
worth £100,000
or more

30 Jul 2020

No

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

30 Jul 2020

No

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

30 Jul 2020

No

No

Report of the
Director
(Commercial
Services)

Agenda Item 8

Executive
Cabinet

Agenda Page 40

King George V
Playing Fields,
Adlington

Relevant
Portfolio
Holder

Reason the
decision is key

Earliest Date
decision can
be taken

Will the public
be excluded?

Are there any
background
papers?

Documents to
be considered
by Decision
taker

Provisional
Revenue and
Capital Outturn
2019/20

Executive
Cabinet

Executive
Member
(Resources)

A change in
service
provision that
impacts upon
the service
revenue budget
by £100,000 or
more

30 Jul 2020

No

No

Report of the
Statutory
Finance Officer

Pod
Development
Site Pall Mall
Chorley

Executive
Cabinet

Executive
Member
(Resources)

A contract
worth £100,000
or more

30 Jul 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Commercial
Services)

Heads of Terms
for GP Surgery
and Nursery at
Tatton

Executive
Cabinet

Executive
Member
(Resources)

A contract
worth £100,000
or more

30 Jul 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Commercial
Services)

Agenda Item 8

Decision to be
taken by

Agenda Page 41

Details of the
Decision to be
taken

Details of the
Decision to be
taken

Decision to be
taken by

Relevant
Portfolio
Holder

Reason the
decision is key

Earliest Date
decision can
be taken

Will the public
be excluded?

Are there any
background
papers?

Documents to
be considered
by Decision
taker

Accommodation
Review Project
- Professional
Services
Contract Award
Approval

Executive
Cabinet

Executive
Member
(Resources)

A contract
worth £100,000
or more

15 Oct 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Deputy Chief
Executive

Accommodation
Review Project
- Main
Contractor
Procurement
Approach
Approval

Executive
Cabinet

Executive
Member
(Resources)

A contract
worth £100,000
or more

15 Oct 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Deputy Chief
Executive

Future meetings

Agenda Page 42

Agenda Item 8

Relevant
Portfolio
Holder

Reason the
decision is key

Earliest Date
decision can
be taken

Will the public
be excluded?

Are there any
background
papers?

Documents to
be considered
by Decision
taker

Accommodation
Review Project
- Furniture
Procurement
Approach
Approval

Executive
Cabinet

Executive
Member
(Resources)

A contract
worth £100,000
or more

15 Oct 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Deputy Chief
Executive

Accommodation
Review Project
- ICT
Procurement
Approach
Approval

Executive
Cabinet

Executive
Member
(Resources)

A contract
worth £100,000
or more

15 Oct 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Customer and
Digital)

Agenda Item 8

Decision to be
taken by

Agenda Page 43

Details of the
Decision to be
taken

Decision to be
taken by

Relevant
Portfolio
Holder

Accommodation
Review Project
- Approval for
delegation of
other decisions

Executive
Cabinet

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Queens Road
Car Park
Resurfacing Contract award

Executive
Cabinet

Executive
Member
(Economic
Development
and Public
Service
Reform)

Reason the
decision is key

A contract
worth £100,000
or more

Will the public
be excluded?

Are there any
background
papers?

Documents to
be considered
by Decision
taker

15 Oct 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Deputy Chief
Executive

15 Oct 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Commercial
Services)

Agenda Item 8

Earliest Date
decision can
be taken

Agenda Page 44

Details of the
Decision to be
taken

Relevant
Portfolio
Holder

Accommodation
Review Project
- project
update, final
plans and
phasing of
works approval

Executive
Cabinet

Executive
Member
(Customer,
Advice and
Streetscene
Services),
Executive
Member
(Resources)

Accommodation
Review Project
- Main
Contractor
contract award
approval

Executive
Cabinet

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Accommodation
Review Project
- Furniture
Contract Award

Executive
Cabinet

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Reason the
decision is key

Earliest Date
decision can
be taken

Will the public
be excluded?

Are there any
background
papers?

Documents to
be considered
by Decision
taker

12 Nov 2020

No

No

Report of the
Director
(Customer and
Digital), Deputy
Chief Executive

A contract
worth £100,000
or more

25 Feb 2021

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Deputy Chief
Executive

A contract
worth £100,000
or more

25 Mar 2021

No

No

Report of the
Deputy Chief
Executive

Agenda Item 8

Decision to be
taken by

Agenda Page 45

Details of the
Decision to be
taken

Decision to be
taken by

Relevant
Portfolio
Holder

Reason the
decision is key

Earliest Date
decision can
be taken

Will the public
be excluded?

Are there any
background
papers?

Documents to
be considered
by Decision
taker

Accommodation
Review Project
- ICT contract
approval

Executive
Cabinet

Executive
Member
(Customer,
Advice and
Streetscene
Services),
Executive
Member
(Resources)

A contract
worth £100,000
or more

25 Mar 2021

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Deputy Chief
Executive,
Director
(Customer and
Digital)

Executive Member Decisions
Executive Leader and Executive Member (Economic Development and Public Services Reform)
Executive
Member
(Economic
Development
and Public
Service
Reform)

Executive
Member
(Economic
Development
and Public
Service
Reform)

June 2020

No

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

Milestone
Meadow Play
Area, Euxton

Executive
Member
(Economic
Development
and Public
Service
Reform)

Executive
Member
(Economic
Development
and Public
Service
Reform)

June 2020

No

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

Agenda Item 8

Strawberry
Fields Grant
Programme
Amendment

Agenda Page 46

Details of the
Decision to be
taken

Relevant
Portfolio
Holder

Fire prevention
measures on
open spaces

Executive
Member
(Economic
Development
and Public
Service
Reform)

Executive
Member
(Economic
Development
and Public
Service
Reform)

Westway
Operator
Procurement

Executive
Member
(Economic
Development
and Public
Service
Reform)

Executive
Member
(Economic
Development
and Public
Service
Reform)

Approval to
Agree
Steelwork
Modification on
Market Walk
Extension

Executive
Member
(Economic
Development
and Public
Service
Reform)

Executive
Member
(Economic
Development
and Public
Service
Reform)

Reason the
decision is key

A contract
worth £100,000
or more

Earliest Date
decision can
be taken

Will the public
be excluded?

Are there any
background
papers?

Documents to
be considered
by Decision
taker

June 2020

No

No

Report of the
Deputy Chief
Executive

June 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

June 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

Agenda Item 8

Decision to be
taken by

Agenda Page 47

Details of the
Decision to be
taken

Relevant
Portfolio
Holder

Reason the
decision is key

Earliest Date
decision can
be taken

Will the public
be excluded?

Are there any
background
papers?

Documents to
be considered
by Decision
taker

Alker Lane
Bridge

Executive
Member
(Economic
Development
and Public
Service
Reform)

Executive
Member
(Economic
Development
and Public
Service
Reform)

A change in
service
provision that
impacts upon
the service
revenue budget
by £100,000 or
more

July 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

Westway
Football
Foundation
Submission

Executive
Member
(Economic
Development
and Public
Service
Reform)

Executive
Member
(Economic
Development
and Public
Service
Reform)

A contract
worth £100,000
or more

July 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

Agenda Item 8

Decision to be
taken by

Agenda Page 48

Details of the
Decision to be
taken

Decision to be
taken by

Relevant
Portfolio
Holder

Reason the
decision is key

Earliest Date
decision can
be taken

Will the public
be excluded?

Are there any
background
papers?

Documents to
be considered
by Decision
taker

Acquisition of
Properties

Executive
Member
(Economic
Development
and Public
Service
Reform)

Executive
Member
(Economic
Development
and Public
Service
Reform)

A contract
worth £100,000
or more

July 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Commercial
Services)

Deputy Executive Leader and Executive Member (Resources)
Executive
Member
(Resources)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

June 2020

No

No

Report of the
Director
(Customer and
Digital)

Applications to
waive Council
Tax Long-Term
Empty Premium

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

June 2020

No

No

Report of the
Director
(Customer and
Digital)

Agenda Item 8

Approval for the
contact award
procedure for
the
procurement of
asset
management
software for
streetscene
services

Agenda Page 49

Details of the
Decision to be
taken

Decision to be
taken by

Relevant
Portfolio
Holder

Harrisons Farm
Adlington Notification of
United Utilities
Works under
S159 of the
Water Industry
Act 1991

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Application to
Waive Council
Tax Long Term
Empty Premium
- Andertons
School House

Reason the
decision is key

Will the public
be excluded?

Are there any
background
papers?

Documents to
be considered
by Decision
taker

Executive
Member
(Resources)

June 2020

No

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

June 2020

No

No

Report of the
Director
(Customer and
Digital)

Common Bank
Lane Disposal

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

June 2020

No

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

Approval For
Car Park
Barrier Bengal
Street

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

June 2020

No

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

Agenda Item 8

Earliest Date
decision can
be taken

Agenda Page 50

Details of the
Decision to be
taken

Details of the
Decision to be
taken

Decision to be
taken by

Relevant
Portfolio
Holder

IHRA Definition
of Antisemitism

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Business Grant
Programme
Budgets

Reason the
decision is key

Are there any
background
papers?

Documents to
be considered
by Decision
taker

Executive
Member
(Resources)

June 2020

No

No

Report of the
Director
(Governance)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

June 2020

No

No

Report of the
Director
(Commercial
Services)

HR Policy
Framework

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

June 2020

No

No

Report of the
Deputy Chief
Executive

HR Policy
Framework

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

June 2020

No

No

Report of the
Deputy Chief
Executive

HR Policy
Framework

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

June 2020

No

No

Report of the
Deputy Chief
Executive

HR Policy
Framework

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

June 2020

No

No

Report of the
Deputy Chief
Executive

Agenda Item 8

Will the public
be excluded?

Agenda Page 51

Earliest Date
decision can
be taken

Decision to be
taken by

Relevant
Portfolio
Holder

Croft Lodge,
Lodge Bank,
Brinscall Fishing Lease

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Disposal of 3
Parking Spaces
at Farrington
Street Car Park
Chorley

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Reason the
decision is key

Will the public
be excluded?

Are there any
background
papers?

Documents to
be considered
by Decision
taker

Executive
Member
(Resources)

June 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

June 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

Agenda Item 8

Earliest Date
decision can
be taken

Agenda Page 52

Details of the
Decision to be
taken

Decision to be
taken by

Relevant
Portfolio
Holder

Land Rear of 50
and 52 Fairview
Drive Adlington

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Approval to
Agree Heads of
Terms for Unit
2, Market Walk
Extension

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Reason the
decision is key

A contract
worth £100,000
or more

Will the public
be excluded?

Are there any
background
papers?

Documents to
be considered
by Decision
taker

June 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

June 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

Agenda Item 8

Earliest Date
decision can
be taken

Agenda Page 53

Details of the
Decision to be
taken

Relevant
Portfolio
Holder

Reason the
decision is key

Earliest Date
decision can
be taken

Will the public
be excluded?

Are there any
background
papers?

Documents to
be considered
by Decision
taker

Approval to
Agree Heads of
Terms for Unit
3, Market Walk
Extension

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

A contract
worth £100,000
or more

June 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

Approval to
Agree Heads of
Terms for Unit
4, Market Walk
Extension

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

A contract
worth £100,000
or more

June 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

Agenda Item 8

Decision to be
taken by

Agenda Page 54

Details of the
Decision to be
taken

Relevant
Portfolio
Holder

Reason the
decision is key

Earliest Date
decision can
be taken

Will the public
be excluded?

Are there any
background
papers?

Documents to
be considered
by Decision
taker

Approval to
Agree Heads of
Terms for Unit
5, Market Walk
Extension

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

A contract
worth £100,000
or more

June 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

Whittle Surgery
Procurement

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

A new or
unprogrammed
capital scheme
of £100,000 or
more

June 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

Agenda Item 8

Decision to be
taken by

Agenda Page 55

Details of the
Decision to be
taken

Decision to be
taken by

Relevant
Portfolio
Holder

Town Hall
Boiler
Replacement

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Unit 30 Market
Walk - Lease
Renewal Game

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Reason the
decision is key

Will the public
be excluded?

Are there any
background
papers?

Documents to
be considered
by Decision
taker

Executive
Member
(Resources)

June 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

June 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

Agenda Item 8

Earliest Date
decision can
be taken

Agenda Page 56

Details of the
Decision to be
taken

Decision to be
taken by

Relevant
Portfolio
Holder

Grant of a
Lease - 37 New
Market Street First Floor
Above Iceland Market Walk

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Alker Lane Appointment of
ecological
consultants

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Reason the
decision is key

Will the public
be excluded?

Are there any
background
papers?

Documents to
be considered
by Decision
taker

Executive
Member
(Resources)

June 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

June 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

Agenda Item 8

Earliest Date
decision can
be taken

Agenda Page 57

Details of the
Decision to be
taken

Decision to be
taken by

Relevant
Portfolio
Holder

Strawberry
Fields Digital
Office Hub Grant of a
Lease - Office
No 2

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Strawberry
Fields Digital
Office Hub Grant of a
Lease - Office
No 3

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Reason the
decision is key

Will the public
be excluded?

Are there any
background
papers?

Documents to
be considered
by Decision
taker

Executive
Member
(Resources)

June 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

June 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

Agenda Item 8

Earliest Date
decision can
be taken

Agenda Page 58

Details of the
Decision to be
taken

Decision to be
taken by

Relevant
Portfolio
Holder

Strawberry
Fields Digital
Office Hub Grant of a
Lease - Office
No 4

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Strawberry
Fields Digital
Office Hub Grant of a
Lease - Office
No 5

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Reason the
decision is key

Will the public
be excluded?

Are there any
background
papers?

Documents to
be considered
by Decision
taker

Executive
Member
(Resources)

June 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

June 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

Agenda Item 8

Earliest Date
decision can
be taken

Agenda Page 59

Details of the
Decision to be
taken

Decision to be
taken by

Relevant
Portfolio
Holder

Strawberry
Fields Digital
Office Hub Grant of a
Lease - Office
No 8

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Strawberry
Fields Digital
Office Hub Grant of a
Lease - Office
No 10

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Reason the
decision is key

Will the public
be excluded?

Are there any
background
papers?

Documents to
be considered
by Decision
taker

Executive
Member
(Resources)

June 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

June 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

Agenda Item 8

Earliest Date
decision can
be taken

Agenda Page 60

Details of the
Decision to be
taken

Decision to be
taken by

Relevant
Portfolio
Holder

Strawberry
Fields Digital
Office Hub Grant of a
Lease - Office
No 14

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Strawberry
Fields Digital
Office Hub Grant of a
Lease - Office
No 15

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Reason the
decision is key

Will the public
be excluded?

Are there any
background
papers?

Documents to
be considered
by Decision
taker

Executive
Member
(Resources)

June 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

June 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

Agenda Item 8

Earliest Date
decision can
be taken

Agenda Page 61

Details of the
Decision to be
taken

Decision to be
taken by

Relevant
Portfolio
Holder

Strawberry
Fields Digital
Office Hub Grant of a
Lease - Office
No 17

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Strawberry
Fields Digital
Office Hub Grant of a
Lease - Office
No 18

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Reason the
decision is key

Will the public
be excluded?

Are there any
background
papers?

Documents to
be considered
by Decision
taker

Executive
Member
(Resources)

June 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

June 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

Agenda Item 8

Earliest Date
decision can
be taken

Agenda Page 62

Details of the
Decision to be
taken

Decision to be
taken by

Relevant
Portfolio
Holder

Strawberry
Fields Digital
Office Hub Grant of a
Lease - Office
No 20

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Strawberry
Fields Digital
Office Hub Grant of a
Lease - Office
No 26

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Reason the
decision is key

Will the public
be excluded?

Are there any
background
papers?

Documents to
be considered
by Decision
taker

Executive
Member
(Resources)

June 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

June 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

Agenda Item 8

Earliest Date
decision can
be taken

Agenda Page 63

Details of the
Decision to be
taken

Decision to be
taken by

Relevant
Portfolio
Holder

Strawberry
Fields Digital
Office Hub Grant of a
Lease - Office
No 27

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Whittle GP
Surgery
Contractor
Procurement

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Executive
Member
(Economic
Development
and Public
Service
Reform)

Reason the
decision is key

A contract
worth £100,000
or more

Will the public
be excluded?

Are there any
background
papers?

Documents to
be considered
by Decision
taker

June 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

June 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Commercial
Services)

Agenda Item 8

Earliest Date
decision can
be taken

Agenda Page 64

Details of the
Decision to be
taken

Decision to be
taken by

Relevant
Portfolio
Holder

Shop Front
Grant

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Business
Financial
Support Budget
Approval

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Reason the
decision is key

Will the public
be excluded?

Are there any
background
papers?

Documents to
be considered
by Decision
taker

Executive
Member
(Resources)

June 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Commercial
Services)

Executive
Member
(Economic
Development
and Public
Service
Reform)

June 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Commercial
Services)

Agenda Item 8

Earliest Date
decision can
be taken

Agenda Page 65

Details of the
Decision to be
taken

Decision to be
taken by

Relevant
Portfolio
Holder

Chorley BIG
Grant (Young
Start Ltd)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Executive
Member
(Resources),
Executive
Member
(Economic
Development
and Public
Service
Reform)

Whittle Surgery
HoT's

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Executive
Member
(Economic
Development
and Public
Service
Reform)

Reason the
decision is key

A contract
worth £100,000
or more

Will the public
be excluded?

Are there any
background
papers?

Documents to
be considered
by Decision
taker

July 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Commercial
Services)

July 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Commercial
Services)

Agenda Item 8

Earliest Date
decision can
be taken

Agenda Page 66

Details of the
Decision to be
taken

Decision to be
taken by

Relevant
Portfolio
Holder

Proposed
Wayleave
Agreement:
Harrisons Farm,
Old School
Lane, Adlington

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Grant of a
Lease - Cafe Primrose
Gardens

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Reason the
decision is key

Will the public
be excluded?

Are there any
background
papers?

Documents to
be considered
by Decision
taker

Executive
Member
(Resources)

July 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

July 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

Agenda Item 8

Earliest Date
decision can
be taken

Agenda Page 67

Details of the
Decision to be
taken

Relevant
Portfolio
Holder

Letting
Arrangements Hair Salon Primrose
Gardens

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Council Tax
Long-Term
Empty Premium

Request to
release
restrictive
covenant

Reason the
decision is key

Earliest Date
decision can
be taken

Will the public
be excluded?

Are there any
background
papers?

Documents to
be considered
by Decision
taker

Executive
Member
(Resources)

July 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

July 2020

Paragraph 1:
Information
relating to any
individual.

No

Report of the
Director
(Customer and
Digital)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

July 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Commercial
Services)

Agenda Item 8

Decision to be
taken by

Agenda Page 68

Details of the
Decision to be
taken

Decision to be
taken by

Relevant
Portfolio
Holder

GAME Unit 13
Market Walk

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Covid 19
Measures

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Reason the
decision is key

Will the public
be excluded?

Are there any
background
papers?

Documents to
be considered
by Decision
taker

Executive
Member
(Resources)

July 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Commercial
Services)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

July 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Commercial
Services)

Agenda Item 8

Earliest Date
decision can
be taken

Agenda Page 69

Details of the
Decision to be
taken

Relevant
Portfolio
Holder

Award of
Contract

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Mutual
Agreement

Queens Road
Car Park
Resurfacing Procurement of
Main Contractor

Reason the
decision is key

Earliest Date
decision can
be taken

Will the public
be excluded?

Are there any
background
papers?

Documents to
be considered
by Decision
taker

Executive
Member
(Resources)

August 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

August 2020

Paragraph 1:
Information
relating to any
individual.

No

Report of the
Deputy Chief
Executive

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Executive
Member
(Economic
Development
and Public
Service
Reform)

August 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Commercial
Services)

A contract
worth £100,000
or more

Agenda Item 8

Decision to be
taken by

Agenda Page 70

Details of the
Decision to be
taken

Relevant
Portfolio
Holder

Reason the
decision is key

Earliest Date
decision can
be taken

Will the public
be excluded?

Are there any
background
papers?

Documents to
be considered
by Decision
taker

Website Review
Contract Award

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

A contract
worth £100,000
or more

September
2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Customer and
Digital)

Lease of Cafe
Coach House
Astley Park

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

A contract
worth £100,000
or more

September
2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Busness,
Development
and Growth)

Agenda Item 8

Decision to be
taken by

Agenda Page 71

Details of the
Decision to be
taken

Relevant
Portfolio
Holder

Reason the
decision is key

Earliest Date
decision can
be taken

Will the public
be excluded?

Are there any
background
papers?

Documents to
be considered
by Decision
taker

Accommodation
Review Project
- Professional
Services
Contract Award
Approval

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

A contract
worth £100,000
or more

September
2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Customer and
Digital)

Accommodation
Review Project
- Professional
Services
Contract Award
Approval
(Mechanical
and Electricial
Engineer)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

A change in
service
provision that
impacts upon
the service
revenue budget
by £100,000 or
more

September
2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Customer and
Digital), Deputy
Chief Executive

Agenda Item 8

Decision to be
taken by

Agenda Page 72

Details of the
Decision to be
taken

Relevant
Portfolio
Holder

Reason the
decision is key

Earliest Date
decision can
be taken

Will the public
be excluded?

Are there any
background
papers?

Documents to
be considered
by Decision
taker

Accommodation
Review Project
- Professional
Services
Contract Award
Approval
(Quantity
Surveyor)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

A contract
worth £100,000
or more

September
2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Deputy Chief
Executive,
Director
(Customer and
Digital)

NSL
Enforcement &
Cash Collection
Contract
Extension

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

September
2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Commercial
Services)

Agenda Item 8

Decision to be
taken by

Agenda Page 73

Details of the
Decision to be
taken

Decision to be
taken by

Relevant
Portfolio
Holder

Reason the
decision is key

Earliest Date
decision can
be taken

Will the public
be excluded?

Are there any
background
papers?

Documents to
be considered
by Decision
taker

Tatton
Development Contractor and
PM
Appointment

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

A contract
worth £100,000
or more

September
2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Commercial
Services)

Accommodation
Review Project
- project
update, final
plans and
phasing of work
approval

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Executive
Member
(Resources),
Executive
Member
(Customer,
Advice and
Streetscene
Services)

December 2020

No

No

Report of the
Deputy Chief
Executive,
Director
(Customer and
Digital)

Agenda Page 74

Details of the
Decision to be
taken

Agenda Item 8

Details of the
Decision to be
taken

Decision to be
taken by

Relevant
Portfolio
Holder

Council
Chamber
refurbishment Contract award

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Executive
Member
(Resources)

Reason the
decision is key

Are there any
background
papers?

Documents to
be considered
by Decision
taker

March 2021

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director
(Governance)

June 2020

No

Details can be
found here:
https://democra
cy.chorley.gov.
uk/ieListDocum
ents.aspx?CId=
117&MId=8153

Report of the
Director (Early
Intervention and
Support)

Executive Member (Early Intervention)
Review of
Neighbourhood
Working
following the
Boundary
Review

Executive
Member (Early
Intervention)

Executive
Member (Early
Intervention)

Agenda Item 8

Will the public
be excluded?

Agenda Page 75

Earliest Date
decision can
be taken

Decision to be
taken by

Relevant
Portfolio
Holder

Reason the
decision is key

Earliest Date
decision can
be taken

Will the public
be excluded?

Are there any
background
papers?

Documents to
be considered
by Decision
taker

Investment and
improvements
at Duxbury Park
Community
Facilities

Executive
Member (Early
Intervention)

Executive
Member (Early
Intervention)

A new or
unprogrammed
capital scheme
of £100,000 or
more

July 2020

Paragraph 3:
Information
relating to the
financial or
business affairs
of any particular
person
(including the
authority
holding that
information).

No

Report of the
Director (Early
Intervention and
Support)

July 2020

No

No

Report of the
Director
(Customer and
Digital)

Executive Member (Customer, Advice and Streetscene)
Recycling
Strategy

Executive
Member
(Customer,
Advice and
Streetscene
Services)

Executive
Member
(Customer,
Advice and
Streetscene
Services)

Agenda Item 8

Executive Member (Homes and Housing)

Agenda Page 76

Details of the
Decision to be
taken

Agenda Item 9

Agenda Page 77

Report of

Meeting

Date

Deputy Chief Executive

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

2 July 2020

CRIME AND DISORDER SCRUTINY
PURPOSE OF REPORT
1.

To provide an update on work undertaken to meet the council’s duties relating to crime and
disorder.

RECOMMENDATION(S)
2.

To note the content of the report

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT
3.

This report provides a summary of the work undertaken and planned interventions to reduce
and tackle crime and disorder, through fulfilling relevant obligations in connection with
Section 5 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and Section 26 of the Counter Terrorism and
Security Act 2015.

4.

Chorley council are fulfilling their obligation under Section 5 Crime & Disorder Act 1998
through actively engaging with the established Community Safety Partnership and
implementing required actions and interventions concerning crime and disorder within the
partnership area.

5.

The Council are fulfilling their statutory obligations under Section 26 of the Counter
Terrorism and Security Act 2015 that requires all specified authorities to have “due regard
to the need to prevent people from being drawn into terrorism”.

Confidential report
Please bold as appropriate

No

Yes

CORPORATE PRIORITIES
6.

This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives:

Involving residents in improving their local
area and equality of access for all
Clean, safe and healthy homes and X
communities

A strong local economy
An ambitious council that does more
to meet the needs of residents and
the local area

Agenda Page 78

Agenda Item 9

BACKGROUND
7.

Section 5 Crime & Disorder Act 1998 established Community Safety Partnership’s (CSP)
which is ‘an alliance of organisations which generate strategies and policies, implement
actions and interventions concerning crime and disorder within their partnership area’

8.

The topic of Counter Terrorism in terms of the council’s duty specifically relates to Prevent,
which is a statutory duty under Section 26 of the Counter Terrorism and Security Act 2015.
This act sets out how authorities in the UK will pursue (stop), protect (strengthen against
attack), prepare (mitigate) and prevent radicalisation and subsequent terrorism across the
UK

SUMMARY OF WORKS UNDERTAKEN
9.

The CSP has developed an action plan detailing how the partnerships meets its obligations.
The plan demonstrates the key priorities of focus for planned actions and interventions, that
have been derived from a strategic assessment. The current priorities of focus are antisocial behaviour, exploitation, domestic abuse and road safety. The plan explains the work
undertaken by the partnership relevant to the reduction of crime and disorder under each
priority.

10.

The Home Office is now funding the ‘Prevent Duty’ across Lancashire as a pilot area. This
has enabled a dedicated Prevent delivery team based at Blackburn and Darwen Council to
support Lancashire Local Authorities in ensuring effective Prevent delivery. As part of this
delivery the council has produced a local risk assessment and strategical analysis against
the counter terrorism local profile (CLPT). The local risk assessment demonstrates the
assessment of the threat including the presence and nature of the people, groups,
communities and places that may be exploited by radicalisers, and the probability that this
may take place and the harm that could occur. These analysis highlights current emerging
themes or vulnerabilities in local radicalisation and any relevant changes.

NEXT STEPS
11.

The final stages of CSP action plan, strategic analysis and local risk assessment are
currently being prepared and will be circulated once finalised. The analysis and assessment
shall be monitored and amended appropriately with any relevant emerging threats and
changes. The CSP action plan will be updated to align with the next strategic assessment
and the priorities derived from that assessment in 2021.

IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT
12.

This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments are
included:
Finance
Human Resources
Legal
No significant implications in this
area

X

Customer Services
Equality and Diversity
Integrated Impact Assessment
required?
Policy and Communications

COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER
13.

No comment

Agenda Page 79

Agenda Item 9

COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER
14.

Section 19 of the Police and Justice Act 2006 requires every local authority to have a crime
and disorder committee with the power to review or scrutinise decisions made or other
action taken in connection with the discharge by the responsible authorities of their crime
and disorder functions. The Crime and Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny) Regulations 2009
(the Regulations) complement the provisions under section 19.

15.

All authorities – including fourth option authorities - will need to create, or designate, a
crime and disorder committee to deal with crime and disorder scrutiny. The terms of
reference of the committee are to scrutinise the work of the community safety partnership
and the partners who comprise it, insofar as their activities relate to the partnership itself. It
will be up to the Council along with its partners - to decide on the best way to put
procedures in place for these new scrutiny powers.

16.

The Act and the Regulations do not require the council to alter existing committee
structures. There must however, be a formal place where community safety matters can be
discussed and this is the function of this Overview & Scrutiny Committee.
The report sets out the Council’s obligations and duties.

CHRIS SINNOTT
DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Report Author
Laura-Jean Taylor

Ext

Date
19.03.2020

Report Author

Date

Laura-Jean Taylor

11.03.2020

Doc ID
Appendix 1- Draft Community
Safety Partnership Action Plan

BACKGROUND PAPERS

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Page 81

Agenda Item 9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10

Agenda Page 93

Report of

Meeting

Date

Deputy Chief Executive

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

2 July 2020

CHILD SEXUAL EXPLOITATION MONITORING REPORT
PURPOSE OF REPORT
1.

To update the committee on progress made in responding to the recommendations made
by the overview and scrutiny task and finish group on tackling child sexual exploitation
(CSE).

RECOMMENDATION(S)
2.

That the report be noted.

Confidential report
Please bold as appropriate

No

Yes

CORPORATE PRIORITIES
3.

This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives:

Involving residents in improving their local
area and equality of access for all
Clean, safe and healthy homes and
communities

A strong local economy


An ambitious council that does more
to meet the needs of residents and
the local area

BACKGROUND
4.

The final report of the Overview and Scrutiny task and finish group on Child Sexual
Exploitation was presented to Executive Cabinet in August 2017. The Executive Cabinet
accepted the recommendations made and approved an action plan to deliver against the
recommendations.

5.

This report presents an update on the implementation of that action plan.

Agenda Page 94

Agenda Item 10

UPDATE ON THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE ACTION PLAN
6.

Set out in the table below is an update against the action plan.

KEY AREA

Training and
awareness
raising for
Elected
Members and
Officers.

Taxi Trade
and Licencing
community
training

Work with
partners in
producing
appropriate
materials /

ACTION

Completed

1. Elected members provided with training
by Lancashire Police including
awareness and referral pathways.

Completed during the task and
finish group review

2. Licencing and Public Safety Committee
members provided with training and any
new members appointed to the
Committee to include CSE and
safeguarding awareness and referral
pathways.

Training was organised and
delivered by an external provider
in 2017/18, and was refreshed on
the 9&15 July 2020

3. A further training session will be provided
to elected members including new
members. To include partnership
approaches such as contact with every
child & young person matter and referral
pathways.

This was delivered through a
Member Learning Session

4. Officer training – e-learning Emerge –
mandatory – include awareness and
referral pathways.

Completed alongside
safeguarding training packages.

5. All Regulatory Services Officers received
training and information regarding
safeguarding and CSE

Completed

6. Support campaigns in relation to CSE
and Safeguarding issues i.e. CSE Week
– utilising social media and other forms
of publication

Publicity supported annually for
CSE awareness day – completed
and ongoing

7. Working with partners to produce an
appropriate package of training
specifically relating to CSE to be
delivered to the targeted officers who
already receive safeguarding training.

Training completed across
Chorley and South Ribble
Partners ‘Not just our daughters’
delivered by Yorkshire Mesmac

1. Training to be put on for Taxi Licence
holders every 3 months, until this is
available online.

Completed and ongoing

2. Wider licencing trade to be invited to
attend training as part of CSE
Awareness Week. Suggested theatre
group and workshop – feedback to be
used to inform future events.

Not completed

1. Continue to engage with High School
Safeguarding Leads – pass on
material/learning/advice on a regular
basis

Ongoing

Agenda Page 95
KEY AREA
delivering
events to raise
CSE
awareness
amongst
parents and
guardians,
improve links
and maintain
links with
secondary and
primary
schools

Agenda Item 10

ACTION

Completed

2. Continue to work with Early Action Team
(Police) in relation to their work within
primary and secondary school and
provide assistance where appropriate.

This work continues, through the
community safety partnership and
the multi-agency PIVOT process.

3. Work with other partners in relation to
CSE & Safeguarding awareness/training
for school/teachers/parents utilising
theatre company style.

Delivered through the ‘Chelsea’s
Choice’ project across Chorley
and South Ribble

4. Task and Finish Group to be convened
and include Safeguarding lead from
Parkland Academy and a primary school.

The task group was created and
worked on the Chelsea’s Choice
project.

5. Hold central list of Safeguarding leads for Contact is established through the
all Secondary & Primary schools in
various head teacher cluster
Chorley. Utilise LCC and Early Action for arrangements in place
these links.
Elected
members
personal
safety
guidance

The Council to
continue to
raise
awareness
within the
community

7.

1. Democratic Services to provide guidance
to members in relation to personal safety
including appropriate conduct and
disciplinary procedures.

Completed

1. Regulatory Manager to develop a Safeguarding and CSE awareness handbook
for the taxi trade and designed a contact
card to accompany the badge and
licence.

Completed in September 2017

2. A safeguarding and CSE element to be
included in the new online taxi trade
knowledge test and also used for drivers
at renewal.

Knowledge test currently being
reviewed – conversion to online
test will include safeguarding and
CSE 2020

3. Liaise with Police Deter team in relation
to new publications from Lancashire
Police

Ongoing

While many of the original actions and recommendations have been implemented, it is
important to note that many relate to training and awareness raising. It will be important to
ensure that this continues to ensure that Officers and Members are aware of the risk of
CSE and the processes that are in place to protect children. Work over the next twelve
months will include:
a. Including refresher training for members of the Licensing and Public Safety
Committee
b. Awareness raising for Members about safeguarding and CSE
c. Continued development of the training for the taxi trade around CSE, including the
introduction of online taxi trade knowledge test that covers CSE.

Agenda Page 96

Agenda Item 10

IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT
8.

This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments are
included:
Finance
Human Resources
Legal
No significant implications in this
area



Customer Services
Equality and Diversity
Integrated Impact Assessment
required?
Policy and Communications

RISK
A risk register has been
completed

No

Yes

COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER
9.

No comment

COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER
10.

In March 2013, the national definition of domestic and sexual abuse changed to included
victims aged 16 and 17 years. There is a pervasive duty of the Council under the Children
Act 2004 as well as the duty to only grant taxi driver licences to fit and proper persons in
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. Child Sexual Exploitation has had a
high profile for several years and is clearly a key issue when considering how local resources
are required to coalesce to ensure that there is sufficient strategic planning, driven from the
very top of the organisation, to drive and maintain focus and meeting the challenge posed by
this serious type of sexual abuse.

CHRIS SINNOTT
DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Report Author

Ext

Laura-Jean Taylor

Date
11 March 2020

Doc ID
Child Sexual
Exploitation Monitoring
Report

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Report Author
Chris Sinnott

Ext

Date
11 October 2018

Doc ID
Child Sexual
Exploitation Monitoring
Report

Agenda Item 11

Agenda Page 97

Report of

Meeting

Date

Director of Commercial Services

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

2 July 2020

ROLL OUT OF
MONITORING

SUPERFAST

BROADBAND

BY

BT

-

PURPOSE OF REPORT
1.

To update Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the implementation of the
recommendations made by the inquiry which reported to Executive Cabinet in August 2017.

RECOMMENDATION(S)
2.

That the updates of this report be noted.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT
3.

This report seeks to provide an update to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the
implementation of the recommendations made by the inquiry which reported to Executive
Cabinet in August 2017

Confidential report
Please bold as appropriate

No

Yes

CORPORATE PRIORITIES
4.

This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives:

Involving residents in improving their local ✓
area and equality of access for all
Clean, safe and healthy homes and
communities

A strong local economy

✓

An ambitious council that does more
to meet the needs of residents and
the local area

✓

BACKGROUND
5.

During 2017, a task group of Overview and Scrutiny undertook a review of the roll out of
Superfast Broadband. In August 2017, the Executive Cabinet accepted the
recommendations in the final report of the task group. This report provides an update on
progress in delivering against the recommendations.

UPDATE OF PROGRESS IN DELIVERY
6.

The following information sets out the original recommendations from the Task Group, and
an update on the progress in delivery.

7.

Lancashire County Council

Agenda Page 98

7.1.

Agenda Item 11

Superfast Lancashire
Updates below provided by Gemma Johnson, Superfast Lancashire Project Manager at
Lancashire County Council.
Task Group Recommendation
To have discussions with Virgin about the
current issues in Buckshaw, Rivington and
White Coppice and encourage them to
provide Superfast Broadband.

Update
Update provided March 2020:
Virgin haven’t shared any plans
Lancashire County Council (LCC).

with

BT/Openreach (OR) have recently indicated
that they are reviewing coverage – LCC will
follow this up and advise. Any specific queries,
please provide details to LCC.
To highlight the issues of new estates not
having Superfast Broadband from the
outset with Broadband Delivery UK
(BDUK).

Update provided March 2020:
LCC are in liaison with Preston and South
Ribble City Deal team to develop a
mechanism for sharing planning updates with
Developers. Once we have a process this can
be shared with all districts.

To provide hints and tips on resolving
broadband issues, including residents
speaking to their own provider first before
speaking to other providers and not
placing electrical devices next to the
router etc for distribution to Councillors
and Town/Parish Councils.

Update provided March 2020:
The Website was updated 12 months ago and
is due for a refresh in April 2020.

To utilise different technologies available
to provide Superfast Broadband to white
areas (having minimal coverage and open
market review failure).

Update provided March 2020:
The Government's target is for full fibre
coverage by 2025. This is extremely ambitious
but is the current driver for all future
investment.

A help sheet has been developed to advise
what steps to follow to confirm speed and
coverage. This is being updated to include the
latest announcements from Broadband
Delivery UK (BDUK). This will be available
April 2020.

Recent Announcements also suggest a coordinated National approach to procurement.
The process is still being developed by BDUK.

7.2.

BT
Updates below provided by Gemma Johnson, Superfast Lancashire Project Manager at
Lancashire County Council.
Task Group Recommendation
To update the call centre operative
information with regard to Superfast
Broadband accessibility.

Update
Update provided March 2020:
LCC assure data submitted by BT on a
quarterly basis and raise inaccessible

Agenda Page 99

To review structures in areas which flood,
to ensure they are located in the best
place.

Agenda Item 11

evidence issues with them. The number of
record issues have been reducing, resulting
in call centre operatives having access to
accurate timely coverage information.
Update provided March 2020:
This is still ongoing as Openreach consider
associated flooding factors within planning and
delivery.
If there are any specific examples or queries
for Chorley, please provide and LCC will
follow them up with OR.

8. Chorley Council
8.1.

8.2.

Updates below provided by Alison Martland, Principal Planning Officer.
Task Group Recommendation
To
consider
methods
of
encouraging new properties to
have
access
to
Superfast
Broadband from the outset

Update
Update provided February 2020:
The Central Lancashire Local Plan Review is to
incorporate an appropriate policy about providing fibre
broadband and allowing connection to the doorstep
for all developments (adoption 2023). Policy
preparation will be at Preferred Options stage due
summer 2021. In the shorter term planning conditions
will be instigated (e.g. Strawberry Fields Digital Hub.

To liaise with BT about new
developments, both residential
and commercial.

Update provided February 2020:
As above, BT Openreach is a consultee to the Central
Lancashire Local Plan.

To lobby Broadband Delivery UK
(BDUK) to give broadband the
same status as utilities

Update provided February 2020:
As above.

Updates below provided by Simon Charnock, Digital Transformation Officer.
Task Group Recommendation
To raise awareness with the
public and businesses that
services would not upgrade
automatically but must be
ordered from their provider.

Update
Update provided February 2020:
The Council published on social media advising
residents to check with their suppliers if they are on
the best deal/speed. November 2020
The Council engaged with businesses regarding the
Gigabit Broadband Voucher Scheme. Social Media
posts and letters aimed at rural businesses went out.
The scheme allows SME’s to apply for up to £2,500 of
funding and rural SME’s up to £3,500 for support with
fibre broadband installation. Expressions of interest in
the scheme has been 15 businesses to date.
The Council will support business that wish to apply to
improve connectivity in the rural areas. Residents are

Agenda Page 100

Agenda Item 11

also able to apply for up to £1,500 of funding as part
of a group project should an SME in their local area
apply for funding.
To support the future projects
within the Digital Strategy:
 Integration of My Account
and E Citizen
 Continuation of digital skills
training to give the right
training to the right people
in a flexible way
 Tablet loan scheme

8.3.

Update provided February 2020:
A project is underway to review and refresh the
Council’s website. We expect to award contract for
the initial Content Management System before end of
March 2020.
Part of this project also includes
investigation of the options available for integration
between MyAccount and E-Citizen which will be
looked at by the ICT team.
Partnerships with Lancashire Adult Learning and
Citizen Advice continue to provide free digital skills
training to local residents tailored to their needs.
Sessions are tailored based on to the needs of the
local area working with parish councils and local
venues and community groups

Tailor digital skills training to the
needs of particular groups.

Update provided February 2020:
Digital Skills training continues working with learning
providers, digital champions and local community
groups and venues. Sessions are tailored to specific
needs; for example, a group at Brothers of Charity
with learning disabilities have attended training to
learn about staying safe online. Courses have also
taken place specifically for the unemployed, elderly
and those residents on Universal Credit due to the
system not being online only. Sessions have also
taken place with SME’s in the borough to allow them
to learn about the advantages of businesses being
active online.

To ask Town/Parish Councils to
advertise digital skills training in
their newsletters

Update provided February 2020:
Parish Councils receive digital copies of promotional
material and this will continue. Social media channels
increasingly used to promote availability of digital
skills training.

Updates below provided by Chad Gray, Senior Technical Engineer.
Task Group Recommendation
To include an action to
investigate the provision of town
centre Wi-Fi within the new
Digital Strategy

Update
Update provided March 2020:
The next phase of Wifi rollout has begun with fibre
being laid up the length of Market Street and around
the new Market Walk Extension.
Due to a collapsed duct, the Market Street fibre works
are not yet complete, and our partners are working with
LCC in order to obtain the necessary permission to dig
up the highway to investigate.
Once completed, additional Wifi coverage will be

Agenda Page 101

Agenda Item 11

available from the Market Street/Church Street junction
right up to the Big Lamp at the far end of Market Street.
Additionally, we will be placing Wifi access point on the
Primrose Gardens building to cover the surrounding
area.
The Market Walk Extension will have wifi access points
placed on the 4 new CCTV columns which will provide
coverage around the new extension.
The CCTV poles at McDonalds and opposite the Bus
station are also being brought onto our fibre network
and this will enable us to place wifi on those poles too.

8.4.

Updates below provided by Zoe Whiteside, Service Lead Spatial Planning.
Task Group Recommendation
To highlight the availability of good
digital access within the Economic
Development Strategy as a selling point
for businesses to locate in Chorley.

8.5.

Update
Update provided March 2020:
Ekosgen have been commissioned by the three
Central Lancashire local authorities of Chorley,
Preston and South Ribble to work on an
Economic Strategy which will link into the
Lancashire LIS and Greater Lancashire Plan.
This work is to be tied into the emerging new
Central Lancashire Local Plan and therefore a
draft is estimated to be published Summer
2020.

Update below provided by Phil Owen, Senior Business Engagement Officer (Digital).
Task Group Recommendation
To work with the Combined Authority
through the Digital Lancashire project to
implement these recommendations.

Update
Update provided March 2020:
Duncan Sandford, MD of Digital Lancashire
now works from Strawberry Fields Digital Hub
and an additional events and marketing
person has recently been added to the team.
The Business Engagement Team are starting
to work more closely together and collaborate
on events and meetings.

IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT
9. This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments are
included:
Finance
Human Resources
Legal
No significant implications in this
area
10. No risk has been identified.

✓
✓

Customer Services
Equality and Diversity
Integrated Impact Assessment
required?
Policy and Communications

Agenda Page 102

Agenda Item 11

COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER
11. No comments.
COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER
12. No comments.
MARK LESTER
DIRECTOR OF COMMERCIAL SERVICES

Background Papers
Overview and Scrutiny Task Group Rollout of Superfast Broadband
Overview and Scrutiny Task Group:
Superfast Broadband - Response
from the Executive Cabinet
Overview and Scrutiny Task Group:
Superfast Broadband - Response
from the Executive Cabinet
Overview and Scrutiny Task Group:
Rollout of Superfast Broadband –
Monitoring of Recommendations
Overview and Scrutiny Task Group:
Rollout of Superfast Broadband –
Monitoring of Recommendations

August 2017

https://democracy.chorle
y.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx
?IId=56390

November 2017

https://democracy.chorley.gov.uk/m
gIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=57078

January 2018

October 2018

September 2019

https://democracy.chorle
y.gov.uk/mgIssueHistory
Home.aspx?IId=57078
https://democracy.chorley.gov.uk/d
ocuments/s90830/Monitoring%20rep
ort%20for%20Broadband%20inquiry
.pdf
https://democracy.chorley.gov.uk/ie
ListDocuments.aspx?CId=117&MId=
7237&Ver=4

Report Author

Ext

Date

Portia Taylor-Black

5300

10.03.2020

Agenda Page 103

Scrutiny
Reporting Back
Chorley Council’s Annual
Report on Overview and
Scrutiny

2019/20

Agenda Item 12

Agenda Page 104

Agenda Item 12

CONTENTS
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
1

Membership
Introduction by the Chair and Vice Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Challenging Performance
Key Messages from Task Groups
Crime and Disorder Scrutiny
Challenging the Executive
Financial Scrutiny
Other topics considered
Conclusion and the year ahead

MEMBERSHIP OF OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 2019/20

Councillor John Walker
Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2019/20

Councillor Roy Lees
Vice Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2019/20
Councillors John Dalton, Peter Gabbott, Yvonne Hargreaves, Alex Hilton, Steve Holgate,
Marion Lowe, Matthew Lynch, June Molyneaux, Steve Murfitt, Debra Platt Paul Sloan, Kim
Snape
2

INTRODUCTION BY THE CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR OF OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has had a bust year undertaking a range of service
areas and one task group review. Councillors John Walker and Roy Lees were appointed as
Chair and Vice Chair respectively. There were also several new members welcomed to the
Committee and we undertook Overview and Scrutiny Committee training at the beginning of
the municipal year.

Agenda Page 105

Agenda Item 12

The Overview and Scrutiny Performance Panel, consisting of six members met quarterly to
monitor the Council’s business planning and performance monitoring along with a focus on
each of the Directorates in turn.
The task group review was “Developing the Council’s Green Agenda”.
The Committee continued to receive six monthly monitoring reports following the Executive
Cabinet’s response on the implementation of outcomes and measured success from past
scrutiny reviews.
Impact of Covid-19
Following the outbreak of the global Covid-19 pandemic the final meeting of the municipal
year in March had to be cancelled, therefore the following reports will be considered at our
hybrid meeting in July or throughout the next municipal year:
•
•
•
•
•
3

Adoption of Estates
Air Quality Strategy
Crime and Disorder Scrutiny
Overview and Scrutiny Task Group – Child Sexual Exploitation – Monitoring of
Recommendations
Overview and Scrutiny Task Group – Rollout of Superfast Broadband by BT –
Monitoring of Recommendations

CHALLENGING PERFORMANCE
The Overview and Scrutiny Performance Panel focused on the performance elements of
scrutiny and considered all monitoring information. Scrutinising performance is a key role for
scrutiny and one of the benefits to the dedicated resources was that a smaller number of
members were able to drill down to the detail in key areas and adopt some consistency in
approach.
The panel for 2019/20 consisted of the following membership;
Councillor John Walker (Chair)
Councillor Roy Lees (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Christopher France (Nov – May)
Councillor Alex Hilton
Councillor Marion Lowe
Councillor June Molyneaux
Councillor Gillian Sharples (May – Nov)
The Panel met four times within the last twelve months, considering the Council’s Corporate
Strategy, key projects and monitoring that captured all the directorate and service level
business improvement plans. The Panel also considered an additional performance focus,
where different directorates are put under the spotlight.
Customer and Digital
In July, Asim Khan (Director Customer and Digital) attended with Councillor Adrian Lowe,
Executive Member (Customer, Advice and Streetscene) and Councilor Alistair Morwood,
Executive Member (Public Protection).
We focused on the key areas of the Directorate, including; Enforcement, ICT, Council Tax,
Streetscene and Waste, Planning and Customer Services.

Agenda Page 106

Agenda Item 12

We noted that over the last year the new Enforcement Team has been established. Additional
powers such as, Section 215 notices have been exercised, and a continued focus and
response to community concerns to address fly tipping and dog fouling is being made. IT
Services have worked to support the delivery of the council’s ICT and Digital strategies
including the delivery of Office 365, and the successful introduction of public town centre WiFi. With regards to council tax, the percentage of council tax collected (98.14%,) was slightly
behind target at quarter four in comparison to 2017/18, although this was in line with the trend
across other Lancashire authorities.
We recognised that a new waste procurement exercise concluded with a focus to mobilise the
contract in April 2019. New refuse collection vehicles had been ordered which realised
significant savings for the council. The annual target for garden waste subscriptions was circa
£710,000. We noted that there had been 22,370 subscriptions last year which indicated a
shortfall against projected figures.
The council also procured new street cleansing vehicles with the service and maintenance
built into the new contract to improve breakdown performance. Following discussion, we
agreed that there has been a drastic improvement with regards to grass cutting with 94%
resident satisfaction.
We noted the changes to the Planning team over the last year. The team’s efficient progress
was recognised as well as the decrease in the number of major planning applications the
council was receiving. With regards to customer services, we commended the improvement
to customer service call times. We were advised that the council would be changing phone
suppliers and this work would provide the wider transformation of front-line services by
supporting staff to have more phone functionality.
Early Intervention and Support
Chris Sinnott (Director of Early Intervention and Support) attended the meeting in October.
We focused on the key projects being delivered by the Directorate, including;
• Delivery of a Wholly Owned Company
• Developing a framework for building community resilience and delivery of identified
projects
• Continued delivery of the Integrated Community Wellbeing Service
We queried the performance indicators in relation to Cotswold House which have been
affected due to multiple factors such as a reduction in the number of referrals coming in to the
service, tenants moving on quicker due to new builds and the improved service provided by
Calico (Accommodation Providing Service). This would be monitored in the next quarter. The
indicators in relation to volunteering were also discussed and it was understood that a review
of the scheme would be undertaken, including how the many small community groups, and
the contribution they make within Chorley, could be recognised.
We also recognised that there was a service level business plan relating to community centre
management. Phase one reviewed the charges for bandings and phase two would review how
best to manage each centre. This would be specific to each centre rather than a one size fits
all approach and the Council will retain ownership of the building itself.

Agenda Page 107

Agenda Item 12

Policy and Governance
In January, Chris Sinnott (Director of Policy and Governance) attended with Councillor Peter
Wilson (Deputy Executive Leader and Executive Member Resources).
We noted the Directorate underspend by just under £82k, largely due to staffing and
recognised that 31 (78%) of the 40 key performance indicators were performing above target,
3 (8%) were performing worse than target but within threshold and 6 (14%) were performing
below target.
We focused on some of the high-profile projects as part of next year’s corporate strategy that
the Directorate would be responsible for, including:
• Renovation works at Astley Hall
• The refresh of the Council’s website
• Delivering Shared Services
• Delivery of sustainable public services and the green agenda
We queried the progress of Shared Services, including:
• The appointment of shared posts
• Transferring of staff between South Ribble and Chorley
• Communication with officers/staff morale
• Seating arrangements and access to systems
• Aligning terms and conditions
• Aligning pay scales
• TUPE protection period
• Involvement of the unions
With regards to other aspects of the Directorate’s performance, we discussed revenue figures
for the Lancastrian Suite and noted that these reflected the cancellations of pre-Christmas
events due to the general election. We also queried the sickness absence performance figures
and noted that there had been a reduction in long-term sickness absence but not for shortterm absences.
Commercial Services
In March, Mark Lester (Director for Commercial Services) attended with Councillor Alistair
Bradley (Executive Leader and Executive Member Economic Development and Public Service
Reform).
We noted that the Senior Management Restructure had changed some of the services within
the Directorate and therefore, the functions that now made up the Commercial Services
Directorate (formerly Business, Development and Growth) were;
• Accommodation – operational management of the Council’s housing units, including
Cotswold Supported Housing and Primrose Gardens Extra Care Scheme.
• Market Walk and Town Centre – management of Market Walk shopping centre,
Chorley Markets, town centre car parks and borough wide CCTV monitoring
services.
• Property and Facilities – the asset management and maintenance of all council owned
buildings and assets.
We understood that there had been some difficulties in recruiting to some specialised posts,
but these had subsequently been appointed to.

Agenda Page 108

Agenda Item 12

We noted an overspend across the Directorate but were reassured that this was due to the
nature of the Directorate in delivering projects and taking investment opportunities as they
arose. We were also advised that some of the performance indicators, such as those relating
to the European Regional Development Fund, were not within the Council’s control.
We focused on the Directorates key project updates which included;
• Wholly Owned Company - the “Delivery of the Housing Company” would become
“developing the business plan for the Wholly Owned Company”
• Shared Services – the Directorate was not in the scope for phase one of Shared
Services, but officers were working proactively with colleagues at South Ribble
(including the potential to share an agency surveyor and sharing knowledge on IDOX
software which is used by both authorities)
• A shortage of developed land for businesses to occupy – this was a complex issue.
• Numerous projects in the pipeline, including at Tatton and in the town centre.
We queried the current position of the Shady Lane and Alker Lane sites. It was hoped that full
planning permission would be submitted in the summer for the Alker Lane site, however the
Shady Lane site was more difficult.
4

KEY MESSAGES FROM SCRUTINY TASK GROUPS
Developing the Council’s Green Agenda – Chaired by Councillors Steve Holgate
In 2019, the Council recognised the need to address the global issue of climate change and
investigated how the council could respond to this. Since its commencement in September
2019, the Task Group has met numerous times and has undertaken several sub-group
meetings to consult with as many stakeholders as possible to help build an evidence base.
Site visits to Lancaster City Council and GA Pet Food Partners Manufacturing Site in
Bretherton also took place as well as students from Parklands High School meeting with m
members in the Town Hall to discuss their concerns with regards to climate change.
Funding has been secured as part of the budget process to further the council’s commitment
to become a carbon-neutral borough by 2030. The funding will help to appoint a climate
change officer as well as setting aside reserves to help develop local climate change initiatives
such as tree planting schemes.
The final report which included recommendations based on the evidence collated by the Task
Group was taken to Executive Cabinet in March. All of the recommendations set out in the
report were approved and an action plan would be developed to expedite the green agenda
as a corporate priority.

5

CRIME AND DISRODER SCRUTINY: DRAFT COMMUNITY ACTION PLAN
The Crime and Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny) Regulations 2009 state that “A crime and
disorder committee shall meet to review or scrutinise decisions made, or other action taken,
in connection with the discharge by the responsible authorities of their crime and disorder
functions as the committee considers appropriate but no less than once in every twelve month
period”.
In line with this, it was planned that the Committee would scrutinise the draft Community Action
Plan. This was due to go to the Committee in March 2020. However due to the outbreak of
the Covid-19 this meeting was cancelled. Therefore, the Crime and Disorder Scrutiny will
subsequently take place in July 2020.

Agenda Page 109

6

Agenda Item 12

CHALLENGING THE EXECUTIVE
In addition to challenging the Executive Members through the Performance Panel, the
Committee worked together positively with the Executive Leader and the Executive Cabinet
in scrutinising their proposals which included the subsidised bus services.
Following an Executive Member Decision in July to continue subsidising bus routes in the
borough, an update on the current subsidised services in the borough was brought to the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee to review and consider the current position and provision
for the residents in rural districts.

7

FINANCIAL SCRUTINY
In January 2020 we welcomed Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources) who
presented the report which set out the budget position for 2020/21 including the forecast for
the following two years to 2022/23 and also presented proposals in respect of the use of
forecast resources identified in 2020/21 as well as consultation on the budget.
The budget forecasts over the next 3 years had been updated to take account of the
following;
• Due to the investments made by the Council and the efficiencies achieved, there was
no proposed increase in council tax in 2020/21
• There was no proposed increase in council tax in 2021/2022 or 2022/23, this would
be revisited every year and would be dependent on upon the outcome of the
Government announcements regarding the Fair Funding Review and Business Rates
Retention.
• Continued investment of approximately £1million that would deliver corporate
strategy priorities
• Strategies to reduce the budget deficit in the medium term.
We discussed the following updates and the effects these would have for the council;
• Government’s four-year Settlement - 2019-20 was due to be the final year of the
settlement, however following the Spending Round 2019, councils would receive a
further one-year Settlement as the planned changes from the Fair Funding Review and
75% Business Rates retention had been delayed by at least one year until April 2021
at the earliest.
• Business Rates Pilot - spending round 2019 announced that all 75% pilots would be
disbanded
• New Homes Bonus - gradual reduction and ultimate removal of New Homes Bonus
• Council Tax - the Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement announced a
council tax referendum principle of up to 2% in 2020/21.
• Lancashire County Pension Fund - increase in employer pension contributions for
2020/21 to 2022/23 to meet the future costs of the scheme. The contributions had
increased from 14.4% to 16.4% resulting in an increase in the council’s contribution.
This was lower than the 17.7% assumed in the previous year’s budget.
We recognised that funding to Chorley Council had fallen from over £17m in 2016/17 to a
forecast figure of under £12m by 2022/2023. However, the council had been ambitious in its
approach to meeting the budget deficit through generating efficiency savings and additional
income to ensure the council was less reliant on the increasingly uncertain funding from
Government.
With regards to this we discussed how the Flower Show could be made more profitable, the
options available for the council to maintain the bus station, regenerating the traditional

Agenda Page 110

Agenda Item 12

markets and in-house procurement for the leisure contract. We were satisfied that the council
had been successful in keeping costs down whilst continuing to provide the high-quality
services expected from its residents.
Despite the identified budget savings there remained large forecast budget deficits of
£1.206m in 2021/22 and £2.093m in 2022/23. To achieve a sufficient reduction in net
expenditure the Council’s strategy would be:
1. To realise savings through the procurement of its contracts
2. To identify the efficiencies through investment in infrastructure and through exploring
alternative delivery models that will enable the Council to balance the budget whilst
seeking to minimize the impact on the front-line service users
3. To make the Council more financially self-sufficient with specific emphasis on creating
investment that generates income.
We recognised that through these strategies the council would balance its budget in the
medium-term.
8

OTHER TOPICS CONSIDERED
GRT Encampments
We received a report updating the committee on the actions taken with regards to GypsyRomany-Traveller (GRT) Encampments.
Earlier in the year there had been a number of unauthorised GRT Encampments that
proceeded to move around the borough, between both Council owned and private land. In
response to this, an Overview and Scrutiny Committee was convened to review the
procedures, the legal provisions, deterrents, and the role of the Police in these incidents. At
this time, we noted that the original procedure for dealing with encampments was too linear
and did not accurately reflect the process. Subsequently, the GRT procedure has been
updated to reflect the activities undertaken by all teams and partners.
We were advised that further legal advice was sought from Counsel which confirmed that the
updated process and legal procedures followed by Chorley Council were appropriate and the
most expedient use of legislation. We queried the police reluctance to use force and requested
that officers contact Counsel again regarding the powers of the police.
The Council completed works to install height barriers on two of the town centre car parks and
has received estimated costs for further deterrents. Following queries, we were advised that
no negative feedback had been received regarding the installation of the car park barriers and
there have been no parking issues for the Market Traders as many parked on different town
centre car parks. We supported the introduction of the barriers.
We extended our thanks to the officers for their work in updating the procedure and gave a
special thanks to Carol Roscoe, the Council’s Animal Welfare Officer, for her work with the
animals, particularly dogs, associated with the GRT groups.
Statutory Guidance on Overview and Scrutiny in Local and Combined Authorities
In July, we were provided with the Statutory Guidance on Overview and Scrutiny in Local and
Combined Authorities published by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government in May 2019. The guidance was published to ensure that local and combined
authorities are aware of the purpose of overview and scrutiny and how to conduct its functions
effectively.
We were satisfied and reassured that the Council already complies with a lot of the criteria
included in the guidance. It was recognised that one area which could be addressed was

Agenda Page 111

Agenda Item 12

creating an Executive/Scrutiny protocol. However, following discussion we agreed that this
was not required due to the small nature of the Democratic Services Team and the absence
of a specific scrutiny team.
Syrian Refugee Settlement Programme
The Committee received an update on the Syrian Refugee Resettlement Programme taking
place in the borough. We noted the progress of the families who had arrived in 2018/19 as
well as those families who had recently arrived in 2019/20 and discussed the ongoing support
that was being provided.
We requested the exact cost to Chorley Council for the programme and thanked the Housing
Solutions Team for all their work on the Syrian Refugee Resettlement Programme.
Subsidised Bus Services
In September we received an update on the subsidised bus routes across the borough. We
noted that in July, the daytime 109A daytime service was withdrawn by Stagecoach due to a
lack of commercial viability; this had implications for the services funded by Chorley Council
(357, 109B and 4A). Previously, bus subsidies had been reactive and cost a significant
amount, but in this instance the Council worked with LCC to come up with a more viable
solution that would incorporate the majority of the provision within the subsidised routes. The
reconfigured services would deliver a replacement for the 109A within existing resources. The
services created were the 118/119 and the 24A. As a result of these changes there has been
a reduction of £27,000 in funding for subsidised bus services compared to 2018/19.
Chorley Council provided a contribution towards the delivery of the 118/119 and 24A services.
The contribution was split with LCC; with the Council providing 25% funding for the day
services (LCC 75%) and 75% funding (LCC 25%) for the evening services. The approximate
cost to the Council per annum was £65,731. This was agreed through an Executive Member
decision and funding was committed towards these services for a 12-month period from 1
September 2019 – 31 August 2020.
The report also outlined the approximate current bus provision within the rural areas into the
town centre and surrounding areas. Findings indicated that there were bus services reaching
most areas of the borough, however the Council were looking for alternatives to better use
funding in rural areas such as the dial-a-ride service.
We queried whether residents in Astley Village were happy with the new replacement service.
It was understood that there had been initial issues, but these have been addressed. Following
questions regarding the amount per passenger that was being subsidised by the council, we
were advised that calculating cost per passenger was complex due to the way fare data was
recorded and presented by LCC with costs varying depending on the location and frequency
of the service. Generally, buses are operating significantly under capacity.
We agreed that further work needed to be undertaken to get more people on the buses and
discussed how a reduction in costs could achieve this. It was also suggested that some of the
125 services be rerouted to accommodate more residents in Adlington. We subsequently
agreed that Stagecoach be invited to a future meeting to discuss these issues and the potential
solutions or for a wider task group review be undertaken.
New Waste and Recycling Collection Contract Update
The committee received an update on the Council’s new Waste and Recycling Collection
Contract that was implemented in April 2019. We discussed the new contract, including its
commencement and performance to date. We were satisfied with the new service and thanked
officers for all of their work in delivering this.

Agenda Page 112

Agenda Item 12

We were also advised that changes to recycling were being implemented from 1 October
which would ultimately make it easier for residents to recycle more plastic waste. Additional
items such as clean plastic pots, tubs and food tray could also be recycled. Information of
these changes would be made readily available for residents.
Review of Neighbourhood Working Following the Boundary Review
At the meeting in January we agreed to hold a special committee meeting the following month
to review neighbourhood working and neighbourhood area meetings following the boundary
review. The Chairs of each of the neighbourhood area meetings were also invited to this
meeting.
The first task of the review was to create new Neighbourhood Areas as a result of the ward
boundary changes. When considering the options, we were keen for the meetings in June and
July 2020 to go ahead as the meetings in January and February had already been cancelled.
We expressed some concerns about proposing new groupings without undertaking a full
review of neighbourhood working. We suggested that the detailed review needed to consider
issues such as funding (including CIL monies), representation at meetings including
consideration of parished and non-parished areas, definition of neighbourhood working and
defining the criteria for projects.
Updates on the Lancashire County Council Health Scrutiny Steering Group
As the Council’s representative on Lancashire County Council’s Health Scrutiny Steering
Group, Cllr Margaret France provided regular updates to the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee.
In July, we were advised that the LCC Health Scrutiny Steering Group had considered the
future of acute services in Central Lancashire and the Delayed Transfer of Care (DToC). They
had assessed thirteen options with regards to the future of acute services. These were
shortlisted to seven option, which would subsequently be going out for public consultation. It
was also reported that in the last twelve months, the Delayed Transfer of Care was at 10%
across Lancashire but reassurances were made that improvements had been made in
June/July.
In September, Cllr Margaret France informed us that the main focus was on the health service
reorganisation with the Integrated Care System (ICS) and an update on Our Health Our Care.
We understood that there were not enough details with regards to the reorganisation and the
Steering Group would therefore be asking the ICS for more information before they could
make a formal decision. With regards to Our Health Our Care, we noted that the Clinical
Senate had recently visited both Chorley and Preston and would be making a final decision
on the proposals that would be moving forward. Once shortlisted, the proposals would be
going out for public consultation.
9

CONCLUSION AND THE YEAR AHEAD
It has been an interesting year for scrutiny, resulting in some key recommendations on topics
of concern to members and the public. The challenges ahead, following the impacts of Covid19, are to continue to scrutinise areas of interest for members and their constituents and to
follow up on the implementations of scrutiny recommendations. We need to work effectively
with our partners on scrutiny and continue to challenge the Executive in a constructive way
with recommendations that result in positive outcomes for the residents in Chorley.

Agenda Page 113

Agenda Item 12

The Council will hold four meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and four meetings
of the Overview and Scrutiny Performance Panel in 2020/21. Councillor John Walker will
remain Chair and Councillor Roy Lees will remain Vice-Chair.
Due to the cancellation of the local elections in May as a result of Covid-19 there will be no
major changes to the committee memberships, however we may welcome some new
members to the committee along the way. The draft work programme will be considered at
the first meeting of the Committee in July. This includes the monitoring of previous inquiry
recommendations and potential future topics.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 13

Agenda Page 115

OVERVIEW AND SCUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2020/21
To be considered:
Panel Meeting (OSPP) to
consider Council and
related performance in
addition to scrutiny of key
service areas
Performance Report /
Business Plans
Overview and Scrutiny
Performance Panel
minutes
Executive Cabinet Minutes
Notice of Executive
Decisions
Health Scrutiny
Overview and Scrutiny
Work Programme
Annual Reporting Back

2 Jul
OSC

1 Oct
OSC

Sept
OSPP

8 Oct
OSPP

19 Nov
OSPP

28 Jan
OSC

4 Mar
OSPP

*

*

*

*

Customer
and Digital

Early
Intervention
and Support

Policy and
Governance

Commercial
Services

Quarter Four

Business
Plans

Quarter Two

Business
Plans

18 Mar
OSC

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*
*

Budget Scrutiny

*

Air Quality

*

Indoor Leisure Contract

*

Adoption of Estates

*

Waste Management
Contract
Gypsy and Traveller
Temporary Encampments
Subsidised Bus Services
Neighbourhood Working
and Neighbourhood Area
Meetings (following the
Electoral Review)
Scrutiny Reviews
Focus for the next review?
Developing the Council’s
Green Agenda
Quality of housing
provided by social
landlords
Roll out of Superfast
Broadband by BT
Child Sexual Exploitation

S

C

R
M1

M3
M3

Crime and Disorder Scrutiny
Focus for this year?
*
Community Action Plan
Potential topics for future reviews
Air quality
Public Transport
Neighbourhood Working
Key:
Task Group Reviews:
S
Scoping of the review
C
Collecting and considering the evidence
FR
Final report of the review

R
M
V

Feedback/response from the Exec Cab
Monitoring Reports, 1 2 and 3 (if required)
Verbal update from the Chair

Agenda Page 116

Agenda Item 13

